
 

Board of Directors: 
 
SEAN DEBLEY, President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
MARCIA MARCUS, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
    SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

NOTICE & AGENDA 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District will hold a Special Board Meeting beginning at 6:00 P.M. 
on Tuesday, August 3, 2021. In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-
20 and the Ventura County Stay Well at Home Order resulting from the novel 
Coronavirus the Meeting. 

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click here to join the meeting 
Or call in (audio only) 
+1 213-282-9788,,85869586#   United States, Los Angeles 
Phone Conference ID: 858 695 86# 

The Agenda is as follows: 

A. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
1. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters under the 
purview of the District and which are not on the agenda. (Time limit 3 minutes per 
speaker) 

 
 
C. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 
1. Approve the Agenda Order 

 
     2.  Minutes: 

a. July13, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 
 

 
 
 
 

11

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_N2FhMGM1MDYtY2E1OC00YzQ5LTk3ZWYtYWFkNzg1OTFiZjIz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f7fe391d-f807-4915-a885-600f7b21c060%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22a1ff9a26-d5c6-43de-8ae2-ea53c9efed90%22%7d
tel:+12132829788,,85869586


 
 
3.  Authorize customer request for relief from water charges due to leaks on the 

property consistent with Resolution 16-06: 
 
 

 
 Account Number Water Relief Sewer Relief Total Relief 

a.  01440-01 $0.00 $24.55 $24.55 
b.  00000373 $19.07 $98.21 $117.28 
c.  13240-01 $33.77 $104.35 $138.12 
d.  00000447 $36.75 $92.07 $128.82 

    $408.77 
  
 
 

D. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
6:05 P.M. 
 
 
1. FINAL PROPOSED FY 2021-2022 BUDGET 
Recommendation: 
1) Conduct public hearing, receive staff report, public testimony and close the public 
hearing 
2) Adopt Final Proposed FY 2021-2022 Operating and Capital Budget 
 
 
2. PROPOSITION 218 MAJORITY PROTEST PROCESS RELATIVE TO 
PROPOSED INCREASE TO WATER, WASTEWATER (SEWER) AND REFUSE 
COLLECTION SERVICES RATES 
Recommendation: 
1) Conduct public hearing, receive staff report, public testimony and close the public 
hearing 
2) Upon conclusion of the public hearing and in the absence of a majority protest 
pass, approve and adopt proposed Resolution No. 21-01 revising District water, 
wastewater (sewer), and refuse collection services rates for 2022 through 2026. 
 
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING ON WATER, SEWER, AND REFUSE COLLECTION 
SERVICES PURSUANT to PROPOSITION 218 (CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION, 
ARTICLE XIIID). ORDINANCE 95 OF THE CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT RATES AND REGULATIONS FOR WATER, 
SEWER, AND REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICES 
Recommendation: 
1) Conduct public hearing, receive staff report, public testimony and close the public 
hearing 
2) Perform reading in title only and adoption of Ordinance 95 effective September 1, 
2021.  
 
 

2



 
 

E. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 

F. GENERAL COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS: 
 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA POSTING CERTIFICATION 
 

  This agenda was posted Thursday, July 29, 2021 by 5:00 PM. The agenda is posted at 
the District Office and two public notice bulletin boards, which are accessible 24 hours 
per day.  The locations include:  

• Hollywood Beach School, 4000 Sunset 
• Corner Store, 2425 Roosevelt Blvd.  
• District Office, 353 Santa Monica Drive 

 
Agendas are also posted on the District’s website at www.cibcsd.com.  
 
 
Peter Martinez 
General Manager 
 
 
 
REQUESTS FOR DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION, INCLUDING 
AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, IN ORDER TO ATTEND OR PARTICIPATE IN A MEETING, SHOULD 
BE MADE TO THE SECRETARY OF THE BOARD IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING TO ENSURE THE 
AVAILABILITY OF REQUESTED SERVICE OR ACCOMODATION. NOTICES, AGENDAS AND PUBLIC 
DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE BOARD MEETINGS CAN BE MADE AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATIVE 
FORMAT UPON REQUEST. 

3



MINUTES OF THE 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING, July 13, 2021 
 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Vice President Bouchard called the virtual meeting to order at 6:03 P.M. In attendance, 
Director Brewer, Director Marcus, Director Nast, General Manager Peter Martinez, Clerk 
of the Board, Erika Davis, General Counsel, John Mathews, Office Manager, CJ Dillon, 
and Operations Manager Jesus (Chuy) Navarro. 

President Debley was absent. 

 

B.      PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

None. 

 

C.      CONSENT CALENDAR:  

Director Marcus made the motion to approve the modified Agenda order with Agenda 
item G-1 moved from Closed Session item to Open session Presentation Item D-2 and 
Closed Session item G-2 moved to the end of the meeting placed after General Counsel 
and General Manager comments. Director Nast seconded the motion. The motion 
passed. 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Bouchard: YES, Brewer: YES, Marcus, YES, Nast: YES  4 - Yes 0 -No 

Director Brewer made the motion to approve items 2,3 and 4 on the Consent Calendar. 
Director Marcus seconded the motion. The motion passed. 

Bouchard, Brewer, Marcus, Nast  4- Yes   0 -No 

 

D. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 
 
1. Presentation from Harrison Industries on Senate Bill 1383 
 
Lynn Harrison (Harrison Industries), Danny Harrison (Harrison Industries), Nan Drake 
(Harrison Industries) and Bill Camarillo (Agromin) explained Senate Bill 1383 (effective 

4



January 1, 2022) and presented solutions offered by Agromin.  
 

2. Presentation from Special Water Counsel Candy 
 
Special Water Counsel Candy informed the Board that an adjudication has been filed by 
a group of landowners on June 15, 2021.  
 

E. OPERATIONS REPORT: 
 
Using a PowerPoint presentation, Operations Manager Navarro explained the July 2021 
projects. The projects included were sewer system cleaning, Highland Avenue 
renovation, B Station chopper pump installation, valve replacement at the corner of 
Hollywood Avenue and Ocean Avenue, repair and maintenance at 4201 Victoria 
Avenue, and repair of a service leak at 372 Melrose Drive. 
 
. 
F.  ACTION CALENDAR: 
 

1. Request to Participate in Groundwater Monitoring Study at Kiddie and Hobie 
Beaches by the County of Ventura 
 
Ewelina Mutkowska (Ventura County Manager of the Stormwater program) and John 
Griffith (Southern California Coastal Water Research) requested funds from the District 
to aid in the Groundwater Monitoring Study at Kiddie and Hobie Beaches by the County 
of Ventura.  Vice President Bouchard made the motion to support an initial effort at 
$20,000. If the findings demonstrate relation to the wastewater system in some shape 
or form, then the District will consider further participation. Director Marcus seconded 
the motion. The motion passed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Bouchard: YES, Brewer: YES, Marcus, YES, Nast: YES  4 - Yes 0 -No 

 
2. Bad Debt Write off 
 
Vice President Bouchard moved to approve bad debt write-off from FY 2019/2020 to be 
written off in FY 2020/2021. Director Marcus seconded the motion. The motion passed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Bouchard: YES, Brewer: YES, Marcus, YES, Nast: YES  4 - Yes 0 -No 
 

 

5



3. 2021 CSDA Board of Directors, Election (Seat A) Coastal Network 2021-2023 
 
Office Manager Dillon explained that this is an election for CSDA to fill Seat A. The two 
candidates up for election are Hugh Rafferty and Elaine Magner. Director Marcus made 
the motion to cast a ballot for Elaine Magner and authorize Office Manager Dillon to 
cast the ballot on behalf of the Board. Director Nast seconded the motion. The motion 
passed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Bouchard: YES, Brewer: YES, Marcus, YES, Nast: YES  4 - Yes 0 -No 

 

H.  INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 
1. 2021 Water and Sewer Master Plan 
 

Ryan Gallagher, PE (MKN Associates) presented the 2021 Water and Sewer Master 
Plan. Board requested that the 2021 Water and Sewer Master Plan be brought back 
and reviewed by the Facilities Committee. Then at a future Board meeting returned as 
an action item for full approval, discussion, review, and adoption. 
 
2. Report from Board Members for any meeting or conference where compensation for 
attendance was received. 

Director Marcus reported that she attended the PHWA meeting and there was a closed 
session item with Special Water Counsel Candy.  

Vice President Bouchard reported that he attended the PHWA meeting and other than 
closed session it was regular business. 

Vice President Bouchard reported that he attended the annual CSDA Leadership 
Conference, and the conference was well attended and very informative. Vice President 
Bouchard reported that one of the classes focused on the emerging need for Board 
members to be cognizant of social media and the legal aspects surrounding this topic.    

 
I. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Director Marcus stated her concern about water conservation in the District area. 

 
J. GENERAL COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS 
 
General Manager Martinez said the office reopened to the public on July 6th. 
 

6



General Manager Martinez said that both the Water Quality Report and the Prop 218 
Notice were mailed to the public this month. 
 
General Manager Martinez noted that the Prop 218 hearing will be August 3rd at 6:00 
pm. 
 
General Manager Martinez said he wrote a Next-Door post regarding water 
conservation. 
 

 
G.  CLOSED SESSION: 
 
General Counsel announced the Board went into closed session at 9:09 pm in 
accordance with Government Code Section 54956.8- Conference with Real 
Property Negotiators. 
 
 
2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS – Regarding Cross Base 
Pipeline- Proposed Usage Costs Paid by Third Parties in accordance with Government 
Code Section 54956.8 
 
 
General Counsel announced the Board was back in open session at 9:49 pm. 
Board met with real property negotiators and there was some discussion. No 
actionable item to report. 

 
  

  
The Board Meeting adjourned at 9:49 P.M. 

_______________________________________________                                    

Jared Bouchard, Vice President                                                                                                  

7



Regular Board Meeting, August 3, 2021 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
From:  Peter Martinez, General Manager 
Subject:  FINAL PROPOSED FY 2021-2022 BUDGET  
Item No.  D-1 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
1) Conduct public hearing, receive staff report, public testimony and close the public hearing 
2) Adopt Final Proposed FY 2021-2022 Operating and Capital Budget. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

Action provides guidance and spending limits for the District for operating and capital needs from 
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

On May 11, 2021, staff presented a preliminary budget to the Board of Directors during a budget 
workshop. During the meeting, feedback was provided for staff to incorporate into the final budget 
document. On June 8, 2021, staff presented the final budget, which was approved by the Board; 
however, a public hearing was not conducted prior to approval. This budget mirrors the operating 
and capital budgets that were presented at the June meeting.  

 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 
 

In review, the proposed Operating Budget represents a 2.75% increase from the FY 2020 –2021 
Operating Budget, most of which is driven by water purchase costs. The table below illustrates 
the proposed operating budget for each cost category. 

8



 

The proposed CIP Budget calls for $2,420,000 in capital spending for FY 2021 – 2022, with 
$1,167,500 assigned to the Water Enterprise,  $1,102,500 assigned to the Sewer Enterprise and 
$150,000 assigned to the Trash Enterprise.  

If approved, the adopted Budget would go into effect on July 1, 2021. Members of the public may 
access the full Budget document any time by visiting www.cibcsd.com/budget or may request a 
copy from the Clerk of the Board. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. FY 2021-2022 Final Proposed Budget 

 

9



10



11



12



���� �����	
���
����
��������	
 ��
�� ����� �������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� � �����!�
��� "#�$%$ &'()*�+,-)�.'/)0)-(�#01*23)0)-(/ $%%4 5% 56%7%%% 58%%7%%% 56%7%%% 5$9%7%%% 5% 5:;%7%%%� "#�$%6 <=#�#-/('>>'(,2-�2-�&)>> $%%4 597%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 597%%%� "#�$%8 ?@&<�#01*23)0)-(/ $%%4 5% 5A:7B:% 5$$A7B%% 5$$B7C$% 5997A9% 586769% 58CB7$9%� "#�$%9 &'()*�D,/(*,EF(,2-�#01*23)0)-(/ $%%4 5% 59%7%%% 59%7%%% 59%7%%% 59%7%%% 59%7%%% 569%7%%%� "#�6%$ #G#�H)IFJ(,2-�K�=',-�G�='-L2>)�#01*23)0)-(/ $%%4 59;78%; 5:C$7%%% 5% 58%7%%% 56AA7%%% 5% 5C8A78%;M "#�6%6 N)O)*�+,P(�N('(,2-�'-I�?F01�N('(,2-�H)L'E,>,('(,2- $%%4 5897%%% 5$;%7%%% 5$%%7%%% 586%7%%% 5$%%7%%% 5% 5B:97%%%Q "#�6%9 @RI*2S)-�NF>P,I)�H)IFJ(,2- $%%4 5% 5% 5$%%7%%% 5% 5% 5% 5$%%7%%%T "#�6%A UV-'*I�&'/()O'()*�?>'-(�#01*23)0)-(/ $%%4 5% 56%%7%%% 56%%7%%% 58%%7%%% 5A%%7%%% 5% 5$78%%7%%%W "#�6%C &'/()O'()*�X>2O�=)()*�#-/'>>'(,2- $%%4 5;7%%% 5$%7%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5$;7%%%�� "#�:%6 Y'*I�'-I�ZF,>I,-S�#01*23)0)-(/ 9%4 9%4 5:%7%%% 5$%%7%%% 5$7:9%7%%% 5% 5% 5% 5$79;%7%%%�� "#�:%8 <//)(�='-'S)0)-(�N2P(O'*)�?*2S*'0 9%4 9%4 5% 58$7%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 58$7%%%�� "#�9%$ <,*�"201*)//2* 9%4 9%4 5$%7%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5$%7%%%�� "#�9%6 "L'-S)'E>)�=)//'S)�N,S- 9%4 9%4 5$97%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5$97%%%�� "#�9%8 [)L,J>)�H)1>'J)0)-(�K�6%%$�"*'-)�\*FJ] 9%4 9%4 5% 5$9%7%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5$9%7%%%�� =#�$%: &'()*�.0)*S)-JR�H)/12-/)�?>'- $%%4 5% 5$67%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5$67%%%�M =#�$%9 &'()*�G�N)O)*�='/()*�?>'- 9%4 9%4 5% 5B97%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5B97%%%�Q =#�6%: ""\[�[,I)2�#-/1)J(,2-�?*2S*'0 $%%4 5% 5% 5% 5% 5C97%%% 5% 5C97%%%�T =#�6%; N)O)*�NR/()0�='-'S)0)-(�?>'- $%%4 597%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 597%%%�W =#�:%: &'()*�G�N)O)*�H'()�N(FIR 9%4 9%4 597%%% 5897%%% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5897%%%��
�� 5:%7%%% 58:676:% 5$7$;$7B%% 5$CB7C$% 56997A9% 5C6769% 567%9;7A9%����� 5$:878%; 5$7%BA79%% 5$7$697%%% 5A9%7%%% 5$7%9$7%%% 5% 587;%679%%!��̂_ 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%!�
�� �̀T�a��W �̀a��TaQ�� �̀a��MaQ�� T̀�QaT�� �̀a��MaM�� T̀�a��� �̀aWM�a�����
�����
�����̂� �������Z)S,--,-S�"'1,('>�H)/)*3)�Z'>'-J) 5879C676AC"2-(*,EF(,2-/�P2*�XY�6%6%�K�6%6$b 56$;7%%%?>'--)I�"'1,('>�.V1)-I,(F*)/ K58:676:%.-I,-S�"'1,('>�H)/)*3)�Z'>'-J) 587:9;7%6C=,-,0F0�"'1,('>�H)/)*3)�Z'>'-J) 5$7%$876:;��������
�����̂� �������Z)S,--,-S�"'1,('>�H)/)*3)�Z'>'-J) 587%A979B;"2-(*,EF(,2-/�P2*�XY�6%6%�K�6%6$b 5:6B79;B?>'--)I�"'1,('>�.V1)-I,(F*)/ K5$7%BA79%%.-I,-S�"'1,('>�H)/)*3)�Z'>'-J) 567:$A7ABA=,-,0F0�"'1,('>�H)/)*3)�Z'>'-J) 5$7%:C7A:%

cd�efef�g�efeh�ijklmjn�lokpqrsostm�kpqupjo

13



 

Board of Directors: 
 
SEAN DEBLEY, President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
MARCIA MARCUS, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive ∙ Channel Islands Beach, CA ∙ 93035‐4473 ∙ (805) 985‐6021 ∙ FAX (805) 985‐7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR ∙ CIBCSD.COM 

 

Member of: Association of California Water Agencies ∙ ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority ∙ Association of Water Agencies 
of Ventura County ∙ Ventura County Special Districts Association ∙ Ventura Regional Sanitation District 

Regular Board Meeting, August 3, 2021 
 
To:   Board of Directors 
From:   Peter Martinez, General Manager 
Subject:   PROPOSITION 218 MAJORITY PROTEST PROCESS RELATIVE TO 

PROPOSED INCREASE TO WATER, WASTEWATER (SEWER) AND 
REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICES RATES 

Item No.   D-2 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1) Conduct public hearing, receive staff report, public testimony and close the public hearing 
 
2)  Upon conclusion of the public hearing and in the absence of a majority protest pass, 
approve and adopt proposed Resolution No. 21-01 revising District water, wastewater 
(sewer), and refuse collection services rates for 2022 through 2026. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

In 2016, the District adopted a five-year rate schedule for water, sewer, and trash rates. The 
District is currently in the final year of the Board adopted five-year water, sewer, and trash rate 
schedule approved in compliance with Proposition 218. In September of 2020, the Board 
approved a professional services agreement with Raftelis Financial Consultants to provide 
financial planning and rate setting services for the upcoming five-year period. This water and 
sewer rate study will cover Fiscal Year Ending (FYE) 2022-2026. This has been previously 
presented to the Finance Committee on April 7, 2021, and to the Board on April 13, 2021. On 
June 8, 2021, the Board approved the water, sewer, and trash rates and authorized staff to 
initiate a Proposition 218 Notice. 
DISCUSSION: 

Resolution No. 21-01, if approved, will revise rates for water, sewer, and trash per Ordinance 
No. 95 and would become effective on September 1, 2021. The rates in subsequent years 
would take effect beginning July 1, 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. Below are the proposed rates 
for water, sewer, and trash for the next five years. The Proposition 218 Notice was mailed to all 
owners and tenants in accordance with Prop 218 law. The notice included the full set of rates 
that the board will be considering and described the process for protest as well as provided the 
time and location where the public hearing would be held. 

14



PROPOSED RATES: 

 

15



ATTACHMENT: 

1) PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO. 21-01
2) PROPOSITION 218 NOTICE

PROPOSED RATES:

16



CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION 21-01 

RESOLUTION to APPROVE AND ADOPT ORDINANCE AMENDING RATES, FEES, 

AND REGULATIONS RELATED TO THE PROVISION OF WATER, WASTEWATER 

(SEWER) , AND REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District (hereinafter 
"District") is empowered, through its Board of Directors ("Board"), to provide a number of 
public services in accordance with provisions of California Government Code Section 61000, et 
seq., and 

WHEREAS, the District's powers are enumerated in Government Code Section 61100 
and include the power to: (1) supply water for domestic use, irrigation, sanitation, industrial use, 
fire protection, and recreation within the District under Government Code Section 61100(a); (2) 
collect, treat, or dispose of sewage (herein after sometimes refe!1'ed to as "wastewater"), waste, 
and storm water within the District under Government Code Section 61100(b); and (3) collect or 
dispose of garbage and refuse matter within the District under Government Code Section 
61100(c); and 

WHEREAS, the District may prescribe, revise, and collect rates and other charges for 
the services and facilities it provides under Government Code Section 61621; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District requires that all properties connected to the District's water 
mains to be connected via appropriately sized and metered water main lateral connections and 
appropriate sewer connections based on industry-wide engineering standards; and 

WHEREAS, the District has established procedures for collecting service charges for 
the above-referenced services by a number of ordinances and utility billing policies now in 
effect; and 

WHEREAS, the District commissioned a reputable, nationally-recognized financial 
consultant to complete a detailed rate study into its water, waste water, and refuse collection 
service rates to determine how rates should be adjusted to best follow a cost-of-service approach 
to assessing fair rates to all of the District's ratepayers; and 

WHEREAS, the District has provided written notice pursuant to California Proposition 
218 to all property owners and residents within the District's service area regarding the proposed 

 
 WHEREAS, the District requires all properties within the District's service area 

desiring any one of the above utility services to obtain all of these services from the District; and

17



adjustment to the water, wastewater (sewer) and refuse collection services rates and fees, and 

held a public hearing regat;ding the proposed adjustments on August 03, 2021. 

WHEREAS, the Board conducted a duly noticed public hearing on the Recommended 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Annual Budget during their August 03, 2021 Meeting, concluding in 
the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Annual Budget during the August 03, 2021 Meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Budget for the District 
requires periodic adjustments to water and waste water utility rates and fees in order to balance 
revenue projections with expenditure requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the District's Board of Directors (hereinafter "District Board") finds these 
adjustments to water service rates are for the purpose of covering the direct and indirect costs 
incmTed by the District in the provision of service to its customers, including, but not limited to: 
1) water production; (2) water quality control; (3) professional and technical service rates; ( 4) 
water system operations and maintenance; (5) acquisition of water system equipment and 
supplies, ( 6) water meter installation, service and repair expenses, (7) operating the water 
conservation program; (8) administrative overhead; (9) contractual obligations for services 
provided by other entities; (10) general building, equipment and grounds maintenance expenses; 
(11) salaries and benefit costs; (12) adequate contributions to the capital facilities and 
improvements repair and replacement fund to offset depreciation of fixed assets; (13) servicing 
debt obligations; and (14) providing adequate appropriations for contingency reserves; and

WHEREAS, the District Board finds these adjustments to sewer service rates are for the 
purpose of covering the direct and indirect costs incurred by the District in the provision of 
service to its customers, including, but not limited to: (1) administrative overhead; (2) contract 
service charges and rates; (3) general building, equipment and grounds maintenance expenses; 
(4) salaries and benefit costs; (5) professional and technical service rates; (6) adequate 
contributions to the capital facilities and improvements repair and replacement fund to offset 
depreciation of fixed assets; (7) servicing debt obligations; (8) providing adequate appropriations 
for contingency reserves; (9) meeting contractual expenses incurred by the City of Oxnard to 
accept, transport and treat sewer effluent generated by the District's customers at the Oxnard 
Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant; and (10) meeting contractual expenses incurred by the 
Ventura Regional Sanitation District (VRSD) and the City of Port Hueneme (COPH) in the 
operation and maintenance of the District's sewer collection system; and

WHEREAS, the District Board finds that the adoption of the proposed Ordinance is a 
project exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") 
(Pub. Res. Code, § 21000 et seq.) because it meets the statutory exemption from CEQA for 
projects involving fees, and specific adjustments to these fees contained in this Ordinance, 
because they are actions taken to: (1) meeting general administrative and operating costs 
incurred in the provision of said services, as enumerated above; (2) purchasing or leasing of 
supplies, equipment or materials; and (3) meeting financial reserve needs and requirements. Pub. 
Res. Code§ 21080(b)(8) and tit. 14, Calif. Code of Regs.,§ 15273. 

 

 WHEREAS, the District Board finds these adjustments to refuse are for the purpose of covering 

the direct and indirect cost incurred by the District in the provision of service to its customers, including, 

but not limited to: (1) contractual obligation with E.J. Harrison for services provides; (2) administrative 

overhead; (3) salaries and benefit costs; (4) servicing debt obligations; and (5) providing adequate 

appropriations for contingency reserves; and 

18

Erika Davis
Highlight



authority and upon the recitals and findings set forth above, the District Board approves and 
adopts Ordinance 95 attached hereto and incorporated by reference; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the District Board directs and authorizes the General 
Manager or his designee to prepare and file a Notice of Exemption for this Ordinance approval 
project in accordance with the terms and conditions of tit. 14, Calif. Code of Regs.,§ 15062. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District Board of Directors on this 3rd day of August, 2021, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

✓

ABSENT: 

Directors: 

Directors: 

Directors: 

SEAN DEBLEY BOARD PRESIDENT
 

ATTEST: 

 GENERAL MANAGER

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

JOHN MATHEWS 
GENERAL COUNSEL

PETER  MARTINEZ

_________________________________

____________________________ __________________________

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in accordance with its vested statutory

19



Any property owner or resident subject to these pro-
posed rate changes has the right to protest. While 
property owners and residents are encouraged to at-
tend the Public Hearing and provide oral comments 
to the CIBCSD Board, any protest of these proposed 
rate changes must be made in writing to count to-
wards a protest by a majority of people affected by 
the rate change.

Please note:

	• Protests submitted by email do not constitute a 
valid protest.

	• Multiple written protests lodged by a single prop-
erty owner or resident will not individually count 
in determining whether there is a majority protest.

	• Only a single written protest per parcel counts in 
determining whether there is a majority protest.

	• Written protests must: 

1.	 contain the address or parcel number of the 
property subject to the rate change; 

2.	 be submitted in-person or by mail and received 
by CIBCSD by the close of the Public Hearing; 
and

3.	 must be signed by either the property owner or 
the resident of the property

If you have any questions, please contact the CIBCSD 
office by telephone at 805.985.6021. Any changes in 
rates, if adopted by the CIBCSD Board of Directors, 
will take effect on September 1, 2021.

Proposition 218  
Notice of Public Hearing on  

Proposed Rate Changes
Date: August 3, 2021

Time: 6:00 pm

Location: Dial in - (213) 282-9788; Conf ID: 858 695 86#

PROPOSITION 218 PROTEST RIGHT & PROCEDURE

353 Santa Monica Drive 
Channel Islands Beach, CA 93035-4473

353 Santa Monica Drive 
Channel Islands Beach, CA 93035-4473

805.985.6021

353 Santa Monica Drive 
Channel Islands Beach, CA 93035-4473

805.985.6021

805.985.602120



Channel Islands Beach Community Services District (CIBCSD) is currently considering changes to its water, 
waste water, and solid waste rates. The purpose of this notice is to give you, the owner or resident of a parcel 
of land within the CIBCSD service area, information about: 1) the proposed rate changes; 2) the public hearing 
that will be held on these proposed rate changes; and 3) your right to protest these proposed rates pursuant to 
Article XIIID, Section 6 of the California Constitution (Proposition 218) and the Proposition 218 Omnibus Imple-
mentation Act (Government Code §53750 et seq.). If the CIBCSD Board of Directors adopts these proposed rate 
changes, then rates for all customers will become effective on September 1, 2021.

	• WASTEWATER. CIBCSD is a regional partner of 
the City of Oxnard Waste Water Treatment Plant. 
The proposed rate changes (detailed on previous 
page) are required to fund CIBCSD’s proportion-
ate share of capital costs and increased wastewa-
ter fees related to a $175 million renovation of the 
wastewater treatment plant.

	• WATER. CIBCSD is proposing the rate changes to 
meet the rising wholesale costs of water, electric-
ity, fuel and to more closely reflect the cost of pro-
viding service to customers based on the detailed 
study Raftelis which considered costs related to 
the size of water meter, wholesale cost of water, 
processing cost, etc.

The proposed changes in water, wastewater, and sol-
id waste rates were calculated on behalf of CIBCSD by 
Raftelis  – a nationally-respected financial consultan-
cy specializing in utility rates – using a cost-of-service 
rate structure model. Cost of Service Rate modeling 
evaluates the cost of providing services to each cus-
tomer class and sets rates that ensure the revenues 
collected from each customer class are proportional 
to their respective impacts on the overall operation of 
the District. A copy of the draft rate study and report 
from Raftelis is available for review at the District of-
fice during regular business hours as well as on the 
District’s website, www.cibcsd.com.

Reasons for proposed changes to water, 
wastewater, and solid waste rates:
	• AGING INFRASTRUCTURE. The CIBCSD’s water 

and wastewater systems are aging and in need 
of  repair and replacement in order to meet the 
needs of CIBCSD customers and to comply with 
regulatory requirements. The proposed changes 
in water and wastewater rates are necessary for 
these repair and replacement costs of CIBCSD wa-
ter and wastewater rates.

	• SOLID WASTE. CIBCSD contracts with Harrison 
Industries for solid waste disposal. Harrison Indus-
tries increased its service fees. The proposed 2.5% 
increase in solid waste rates is required to par-
tially offset these higher services fees charged to 
CIBCSD by Harrison Industries. 

Pass-through costs for wholesale water and 
wastewater rates:
Please note that Government Code §53756  allows 
for increases and decreases in wholesale water and 
wastewater costs may be passed through to custom-
ers. CIBCSD will provide written notice of any such 
increases or decreases in wholesale water and waste-
water costs prior to passing those costs through to 
customers.

Methodology used to determine proposed 
water, wastewater, and solid waste rates:

353 Santa Monica Drive 
Channel Islands Beach, CA 93035-4473

805.985.6021

Water Rates - Monthly Fixed Water Rates (by meter size)
Current FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

Non-Harbor
3/4 $38.63 $39.79 $40.74 $41.96 $43.22 $44.52

1 $60.80 $62.62 $64.68 $66.62 $68.62 $70.68

1.5 $116.23 $119.72 $124.54 $128.28 $132.11 $136.09

2 $182.74 $188.22 $196.36 $202.25 $208.32 $214.57

3 $393.38 $405.18 $423.82 $436.53 $449.63 $463.12

4 $703.78 $724.89 $759.02 $781.79 $805.24 $829.40

Harbor
3/4 $53.19 $54.79 $42.79 $44.07 $45.39 $46.76

1 $85.07 $87.62 $68.10 $70.15 $72.25 $74.42

1.5 $164.77 $169.71 $131.39 $135.33 $139.39 $143.57

2 $260.41 $268.22 $207.34 $213.56 $219.96 $226.56

3 $563.28 $580.18 $447.83 $461.26 $475.10 $489.35

4 $1,009.60 $1,039.89 $802.24 $826.30 $851.09 $876.63

Water Rates - Monthly Water Usage Variable Rates (by HCF* per dwelling unit)
Current FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

Single Family
Tier 1 (0-5 HCF) $4.02 $4.14 $4.70 $4.84 $4.99 $5.14

Tier 2 (6-8 HCF) $4.62 $4.80 $5.83 $6.00 $6.19 $6.37

Tier 3 (9+ HCF) $6.47 $6.66 $7.50 $7.73 $7.96 $8.20

Multi-Family
Tier 1 (0-4 HCF) $4.02 $4.14 $4.70 $4.84 $4.99 $5.14

Tier 2 (5-6 HCF) $4.62 $4.80 $5.83 $6.00 $6.19 $6.73

Tier 3 (7+ HCF) $6.47 $6.66 $7.50 $7.73 $7.96 $8.20

Commercial
Non-Harbor 

(per HCF) $4.52 $4.66 $5.06 $5.21 $5.37 $5.53

Harbor (per HCF) $5.28 $5.44 $5.26 $5.42 $5.58 $5.75

Harbor Irrigation 
(per HCF) $5.28 $5.44 $5.26 $5.42 $5.58 $5.75

* “HCF” is unit of water, it means for “hundred cubic feet” which is equal to 748 gallons.

Water Rates - Fire
Current FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

Residential Fire Line
3/4 $6.57 $6.77 $6.31 $6.50 $6.69 $6.89

1 $4.62 $4.80 $5.83 $6.00 $6.19 $6.37

Private Line
1” $6.44 $4.14 $4.70 $4.84 $4.99 $5.14

2” $12.04 $12.40 $11.77 $12.12 $12.48 $12.86

3” $24.76 $25.50 $25.00 $25.75 $26.53 $27.32

4” $46.69 $48.09 $47.84 $49.27 $50.75 $52.27

6” $125.40 $129.16 $129.78 $133.67 $137.68 $141.81

8” $261.15 $268.98 $271.12 $279.25 $287.63 $292.26

Proposed Fixed Sewer Rates - Fixed Charges
Current FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

Single Family Residential $27.99 $28.83 $28.98 $29.84 $30.74 $31.66

Multi-Family Residential $22.38 $23.05 $23.18 $23.88 $24.59 $25.33

Sewer Service Only $22.38 $23.05 $23.18 $23.88 $24.59 $25.33

School $165.37 $170.33 $202.83 $208.91 $215.18 $221.64

Commercial I – Low $26.34 $27.13 $27.24 $28.05 $28.90 $29.76

Commercial III – High $66.39 $68.38 $82.28 $84.74 $87.29 $89.90

Sewer Rates

Proposed Variable Sewer Rates - Volumetric Rates (per HCF*)
Current FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

Single Family Residential $6.60 $6.80 $7.01 $7.22 $7.44 $7.66

Multi-Family Residential $6.60 $6.80 $7.01 $7.22 $7.44 $7.66

Sewer Service Only $6.60 $6.80 $7.01 $7.22 $7.44 $7.66

School $6.60 $6.49 $6.66 $6.86 $7.06 $7.27

Commercial I – Low $6.38 $6.57 $6.76 $6.96 $7.17 $7.38

Commercial III – High $7.92 $8.16 $8.44 $8.69 $8.95 $9.22
* “HCF” is unit of water, it means for “hundred cubic feet” which is equal to 748 gallons.

Solid Waste Rates
Current FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

Residential $31.93 $32.73 $33.55 $34.39 $35.25 $36.13

Walk-in Service $50.81 $52.08 $53.38 $54.71 $56.08 $57.48

21



Channel Islands 
Beach Community 

Services District

Water & Wastewater Rate Study
Public Hearing 

August 3, 2021

22



Steve Gagnon, PE (AZ)

Project Manager

22+ years experience
Chair of the CA/NV AWWA Financial 

Management Committee
Extensive Orange County water and 
wastewater rate setting experience

E: sgagnon@raftelis.com

P: 714.351.2013

Project Team

2

Mihaela Coopersmith

Staff Consultant

15+ years experience
Water and wastewater rate 

setting experience
E: mcoopersmith@raftelis.com

P: 843.253.0357

23



1. Rate Study Introduction
2. Financial Planning Assumptions
3. Water Financial Plan
4. Water Rates
5. Water Bill Impacts
6. Sewer Financial Plan
7. Sewer Rates
8. Sewer Bill Impacts
9. Next Steps

3
24



Terms You Will Hear Tonight

• Rate Study – The process of determining proposed utility rates
• Rate – The amount charged per unit of water
• Rate Structure – The rates and charges applied to various customer classes
• Cost of Service – The utility’s cost to provide water service to each customer class based on the demands they 

place on the utility
• Customer Class – Single Family Residential, Multifamily, Commercial and Irrigation
• Meter size – Meters track water usage at the property; the size is determined by it’s supply line. Most residential 

meters are either 5/8”,  ¾” or 1”
• Volumetric rate – The amount charged per unit of water used
• Fixed charge – The amount charged by meter size, it does not vary by water use
• Uniform rate structure – Charging the same amount per unit of water used, regardless of how much water is 

used
• Tiered rate structure – Pricing water so that the cost per unit increases as consumption increases
• hcf – The unit used to charge for water. hcf = 100 cubic feet = 748 gallons. This is a commonly used billing unit in 

California.

25



What Is Funded By The Utility Rates You Pay

• District’s utilities are funded entirely by the money it receives from rates 
paid by customers

• The rates you pay on your utility bill fund all the operating costs and the 
infrastructure investments 

• District’s utilities are an enterprise fund, a not-for-profit business

26



Legal Environment of Rate Making

• Cost of Service Requirements
› Proposition 218 (Article XIIIC and XIIID of California 

Constitution)

• Water Conservation
› Article X of California Constitution – prohibits water waste
› CA Water Code Chapter 3.4 – Allocation-based Conservation 

Water Pricing (AB 2882)
› SB X7-7 – 20% reduction by 2020
› EO B-37-16 – Each water agency will have a target based on an 

indoor and outdoor water budget
– 2023 to 2025 – 55 gpcd
– 2025 to 2030 – 52.5 gpcd
– Jan 1, 2030 – 50 gpcd

27



Proposition 218 Requirements
1. An agency cannot collect revenue beyond what is necessary to provide service.

2. Revenues derived by the charge shall not be used for any other purpose other 
than that for which the charge was imposed.

3. The amount of the fee may not exceed the proportional cost of service for the 
parcel.

4. No charge may be imposed for a service unless that service is actually used or 
immediately available to the owner of property.

5. A written notice of the proposed charge shall be mailed to the record owner of each 
parcel at least 45 days prior to the public hearing, when the agency considers all 
written protests against the charge.

28



Why Rate Changes Are Needed

Two main reasons:
1. The District’s costs to provide water and sewer service are going up

a. Includes water purchase costs from Port Hueneme Water Agency – gets 
water from United Water Conservation District and Calleguas Municipal 
Water District 

b. Sewer treatment expenses from the City of Oxnard

2. Infrastructure repair and replacement (capital costs)

29



9
30



Inflation Assumptions

10

Escalator FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

General 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Salary 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Benefits 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Electricity 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Fuel 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Fixed Water Costs 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Variable Water Costs 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Construction 2.0% 2.5% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
Wastewater Treatment & Transportation NA NA 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

31



The Below Water CIP is Funded by Rate Revenue

11

CIP Description FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Water Line Easement Evaluation $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Wastewater Flow Meter Insallation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Water & Sewer Master Plan $37,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Easement Risk Mitigation Projects $0 $75,000 $325,000 $90,000 $380,000 $0
Wharf Head Removal $0 $25,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
PHWA Improvements $64,740 $64,740 $116,700 $117,810 $55,650 $32,250
Water Distribution Improvements $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000
Valve Replacement $0 $180,000 $160,000 $160,000 $50,000 $50,000
Water Supply Upgrades $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $25,000 $100,000
Long Term Water Supply Planning $0 $0 $0 $75,000 $0 $0
Fire Flow Improvements $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $70,000 $0
Water Emergency Response Plan $12,000 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Yard and Building Improvements $50,000 $725,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Asset Management Program $15,500 $7,500 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750
Vehicle Replacement Program $75,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $40,000 $0
Water & Sewer Rate Study $17,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000
TOTAL (Uninflated) $342,240 $1,167,240 $705,450 $521,560 $684,400 $271,000

32



The Below Sewer CIP is Funded by Rate Revenue

12

CIP Description FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Water Line Easement Evaluation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Wastewater Flow Meter Insallation $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Air Compressor $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Changeable Message Sign $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Water & Sewer Master Plan $37,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
I&I Reduction- Main & Manhole Impr. $481,000 $0 $30,000 $270,000 $0 $0
Sewer Lift Station and PS Rehab $120,000 $120,000 $0 $0 $30,000 $110,000
Sewer Improvement Projects $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Pump Station B Replacement $0 $50,000 $150,000 $0 $0 $0
Oxnard Wastewater Plant Impr. $0 $200,000 $200,000 $300,000 $424,000 $300,000
CCTV Video Inspection Program $0 $0 $0 $0 $85,000 $0
Yard and Building Improvements $50,000 $725,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Asset Management Program $15,500 $7,500 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750
Vehicle Replacement Program $75,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $40,000 $0
Water & Sewer Rate Study $17,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000
TOTAL (Uninflated) $806,500 $1,102,500 $423,750 $573,750 $582,750 $438,750

33



These Water Purchases are Funded by Rate 
Revenue

13

Water Supply Costs FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

PHWA Volumetric Charge $324,407 $480,106 $504,111 $529,317 $555,783 $583,572

PHWA Blended Tier 2 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

PHWA Fixed Charge $418,317 $439,233 $461,195 $484,255 $508,467 $533,891

Total Water Supply Costs $742,724 $919,339 $965,306 $1,013,572 $1,064,250 $1,117,463

34



Rate Revenue Pays for Debt Service 

14

Debt FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026
Water $352,856 $350,637 $42,403 $42,403 $42,403 $42,403

Sewer $223,010 $224,785 $225,835 $226,135 $227,235 $227,135

Total $575,866 $575,422 $268,238 $268,538 $269,638 $269,538

35



Assumed Reserve Balances

15

Reserve Balances as of 6/30/2020
UNRESTRICTED CASH (WATER) $35,000
WATER OPERATING $385,143
WATER RATE STABILIZATION $168,057
WATER CAPITAL $2,873,010
WATER OUTSIDE RESTRICTED (BOND) $398,000
SUBTOTAL $3,859,210

UNRESTRICTED CASH (SEWER) $35,000
SEWER OPERATING $398,720
SEWER RATE STABILIZATION $173,488
SEWER CAPITAL $2,958,649
SEWER OUTSIDE RESTRICTED (BOND) $191,000
SUBTOTAL $3,756,857

36



Reserve Targets

16

FYE 2023 Water Wastewater
Water Operating (90 days) $442,132 $281,946
Capital Reserve (3.5% of Asset Value) $807,044 $1,024,628
Water Rate Stabilization Reserve (10% of Rev) $226,246 $165,969
Bond Reserve Target $398,000 $191,000
Total Reserve Target $1,873,421 $1,663,544

37



17
38



18

• 0% Revenue Adjustments

-$2.0

-$1.0

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

FYE 2022 FYE 2023 FYE 2024 FYE 2025 FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029 FYE 2030

M
ill

io
ns

Water Operating Financial Plan

Water Supply Costs Other Water O&M
Debt Service Cash Financed Capital
Net Cash Change Current Revenues

$1.52 $1.32
$0.82

$0.20

-$0.47

-$1.21

-$1.5
-$1.0
-$0.5
$0.0
$0.5
$1.0
$1.5
$2.0
$2.5
$3.0

FYE 2022 FYE 2023 FYE 2024 FYE 2025 FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029 FYE 2030

M
ill

io
ns

Total Water Fund Ending Balances

Ending Balances Min Target Balances Alert Balances
39



Financial Health

• 3% Revenue 
Adjustments

19

-$2.0

-$1.0

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

FYE 2022 FYE 2023 FYE 2024 FYE 2025 FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029 FYE 2030

M
ill

io
ns

Water Operating Financial Plan

Water Supply Costs Other Water O&M
Debt Service Cash Financed Capital
Net Cash Change Current Revenues

$2.06 $2.00

$0.0

$0.5

$1.0

$1.5

$2.0

$2.5

$3.0

FYE 2022 FYE 2023 FYE 2024 FYE 2025 FYE 2026 FYE 2027 FYE 2028 FYE 2029 FYE 2030

M
ill

io
ns

Total Water Fund Ending Balances

Ending Balances Min Target Balances Alert Balances40



20
41



Water Fixed 
Charges

• 3% Revenue 
Adjustments

21

Meter Size Current 
Charge

Proposed FY 
2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

$ 
Difference 
b/t FY 2022 
and 2023

% 
Difference

3/4" $38.63 $39.79 $40.74 $41.96 $43.22 $44.52 $0.95 2.4%
1" $60.80 $62.62 $64.68 $66.62 $68.62 $70.68 $2.06 3.3%
1 1/2" $116.23 $119.72 $124.54 $128.28 $132.12 $136.09 $4.82 4.0%
2" $182.74 $188.22 $196.36 $202.25 $208.32 $214.57 $8.14 4.3%
3" $393.38 $405.18 $423.82 $436.53 $449.63 $463.12 $18.64 4.6%
4" $703.78 $724.89 $759.02 $781.79 $805.24 $829.40 $34.13 4.7%

Harbor

Meter Size Current 
Charge

Proposed FY 
2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026

$ 
Difference 
b/t FY 2022 
and 2023

% 
Difference

3/4" $53.19 $54.79 $42.79 $44.07 $45.39 $46.76 -$12.00 -21.9%
1" $85.07 $87.62 $68.10 $70.15 $72.25 $74.42 -$19.52 -22.3%
1 1/2" $164.77 $169.71 $131.39 $135.33 $139.39 $143.57 -$38.32 -22.6%
2" $260.41 $268.22 $207.34 $213.56 $219.96 $226.56 -$60.89 -22.7%
3" $563.28 $580.18 $447.83 $461.26 $475.10 $489.35 -$132.35 -22.8%
4" $1,009.60 $1,039.89 $802.24 $826.30 $851.09 $876.63 -$237.65 -22.9%

42



Water Fire Charges

22

Meter Size Number in 
Service

Current 
Charge FY 2022 FYE 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 $ 

Difference
% 

Difference
Residential
3/4" 24 $6.57 $6.77 $6.31 $6.50 $6.69 $6.89 -$0.46 -6.8%
1" 29 $9.91 $10.21 $9.52 $9.80 $10.10 $10.40 -$0.69 -6.8%
Commercial
1" -                         $6.44 $6.63 $5.94 $6.12 $6.30 $6.49 -$0.69 -10.5%
2" -                         $12.04 $12.40 $11.77 $12.12 $12.48 $12.86 -$0.64 -5.1%
3" -                         $24.76 $25.50 $25.00 $25.75 $26.53 $27.32 -$0.50 -2.0%
4" 8                        $46.69 $48.09 $47.84 $49.27 $50.75 $52.27 -$0.25 -0.5%
6" 7                        $125.40 $129.16 $129.78 $133.67 $137.68 $141.81 $0.62 0.5%
8" 4                        $261.15 $268.98 $271.12 $279.25 $287.63 $296.26 $2.13 0.8%

43



Water – Volumetric Rates

23

Customer Class
Tier 

Breakpoint
(hcf)

Current 
Rates
($/ hcf)

Proposed FY 
2022

($ / hcf)

Proposed 
FY 2023
($ /hcf)

Proposed 
FY 2024
($ /hcf)

Proposed 
FY 2025
($ /hcf)

Proposed 
FY 2026
($ /hcf)

Single Family
Tier 1 5 $4.02 $4.14 $4.70 $4.84 $4.99 $5.14
Tier 2 8 $4.66 $4.80 $5.83 $6.00 $6.19 $6.37
Tier 3 ∞ $6.47 $6.66 $7.50 $7.73 $7.96 $8.20

Multi-family Residence
Tier 1 4 $4.02 $4.14 $4.70 $4.84 $4.99 $5.14
Tier 2 6 $4.66 $4.80 $5.83 $6.00 $6.19 $6.37
Tier 3 ∞ $6.47 $6.66 $7.50 $7.73 $7.96 $8.20

Commercial $4.52 $4.66 $5.06 $5.21 $5.37 $5.53
Commercial Harbor $5.28 $5.44 $5.26 $5.42 $5.58 $5.75
Harbor Irrigation $5.28 $5.44 $5.26 $5.42 $5.58 $5.75

44



24
45



Single Family Residential Bill Impacts –
¾” Meter

25

$50.69 $52.21 $54.84 $58.73 $60.49 $64.24

$79.18 $81.56
$89.23

$98.59 $101.55

$111.73

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

3 hcf 5 hcf 9 hcf 12 hcf

Current vs. Proposed Rates at Various Use Levels (Sample Res. Bill)

Fixed Charges Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3
46



MFR Bill Impacts – 2 DUs, ¾” Meter

26

$50.69 $52.21 $54.84

$62.75 $64.63
$68.94

$75.45 $77.71
$84.17

$89.43 $92.11

$101.66

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

3 hcf 6 hcf 9 hcf 12 hcf

Current vs. Proposed Rates at Various Usage Levels (Sample MFR Bill)

Fixed Charges Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3

47



Commercial – ¾” Meter

27

$79.31 $81.69
$86.28

$92.87 $95.66
$101.46

$106.43 $109.62
$116.64 $119.99 $123.59

$131.82

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

9 hcf 12 hcf 15 hcf 18 hcf

Current vs. Proposed Rates at Various Usage Levels (Sample Commercial Bill)

Fixed Charge Variable

48



Commercial – 3” Meter, Harbor

28

$668.88 $688.95

$553.03

$695.28 $716.14

$579.33

$721.68 $743.33

$605.63

$748.08 $770.52

$631.93

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

$700

$800

$900

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current
Rates

FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

20 hcf 25 hcf 30 hcf 35 hcf

Current vs. Proposed Rates at Various Usage Levels (Sample Commercial Bill)

Fixed Charge Variable

49



29
50



Financial Health 
without Rate 
Increases

• 0% Revenue 
Adjustments

30

-$1.0

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

FYE
2022

FYE
2023

FYE
2024

FYE
2025

FYE
2026

FYE
2027

FYE
2028

FYE
2029

FYE
2030

M
ill

io
ns

Sewer Operating Financial Plan

Sewer System Expense Maintenance Expense
Debt Service Cash Financed Capital
Net Cash Change Current Revenues

$1.47
$1.06

$0.69
$0.26

-$0.26
-$0.81

-$2.0

-$1.0

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

FYE
2022

FYE
2023

FYE
2024

FYE
2025

FYE
2026

FYE
2027

FYE
2028

FYE
2029

FYE
2030

M
ill

io
ns

Sewer Fund Ending Balances

Ending Balances Min Target Balances Alert Balances51



Financial Health 
with Rate 
Increases

• 3% Revenue 
Adjustments

31

-$1.0

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

FYE
2022

FYE
2023

FYE
2024

FYE
2025

FYE
2026

FYE
2027

FYE
2028

FYE
2029

FYE
2030

M
ill

io
ns

Sewer Operating Financial Plan

Sewer System Expense Maintenance Expense
Debt Service Cash Financed Capital
Net Cash Change Current Revenues

$1.75 $1.67 $1.59 $1.48 $1.38

$0.0
$0.5
$1.0
$1.5
$2.0
$2.5
$3.0
$3.5
$4.0

FYE
2022

FYE
2023

FYE
2024

FYE
2025

FYE
2026

FYE
2027

FYE
2028

FYE
2029

FYE
2030

M
ill

io
ns

Sewer Fund Ending Balances

Ending Balances Min Target Balances Alert Balances52



32
53



Wastewater Fixed Charges

33

Customer Class Current Charge Proposed FY 
2022

Proposed 
FY 2023

Proposed FY 
2024

Proposed FY 
2025

Proposed FY 
2026

COS
Single Family Residential $27.99 $28.83 $28.98 $29.84 $30.74 $31.66
Multi-family Residential $22.38 $23.05 $23.18 $23.88 $24.59 $25.33
Sewer Service Only (MH and Condos) $22.38 $23.05 $23.18 $23.88 $24.59 $25.33

School $165.37 $170.33 $202.83 $208.91 $215.18 $221.64
Commercial I - Low (office, store) $26.34 $27.13 $27.24 $28.05 $28.90 $29.76
Commercial II - Medium NA NA NA NA NA NA
Commercial III - High (Restaurant) $66.39 $68.38 $82.28 $84.74 $87.29 $89.90

54



Wastewater – Volumetric Rates

34

Customer Class Current Charge Proposed FY 
2022

Proposed 
FY 2023

Proposed FY 
2024

Proposed FY 
2025

Proposed FY 
2026

Single Family Residential $6.60 $6.80 $7.01 $7.22 $7.44 $7.66
Multi-family Residential $6.60 $6.80 $7.01 $7.22 $7.44 $7.66
Sewer Service Only (MH and Condos) $6.60 $6.80 $7.01 $7.22 $7.44 $7.66

School $6.30 $6.49 $6.66 $6.86 $7.06 $7.27
Commercial I - Low (office, store) $6.38 $6.57 $6.76 $6.96 $7.17 $7.38
Commercial II - Medium NA NA NA NA NA NA
Commercial III - High (Restaurant) $7.92 $8.16 $8.44 $8.69 $8.95 $9.22

55



35
56



Wastewater Single Family Residential Bill 
Impacts – ¾” Meter

36

$46.68 $48.08 $50.01
$52.91 $54.50

$57.03 $59.14 $60.91
$64.04

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

Current Rates FY 22 Proposed FY 23 Proposed Current Rates FY 22 Proposed FY 23 Proposed Current Rates FY 22 Proposed FY 23 Proposed

3 hcf 4 hcf 5 hcf

Current vs. Proposed Sewer Rates at Various Usage Levels (Sample Bill)

Fixed Charges Volumetric Charges
57



Wastewater MFR Bill Impacts, assumes 2 
Dwelling Units

37

$69.68 $71.77 $74.41
$82.14 $84.60

$88.44
$94.60 $97.44

$102.46

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

4 hcf 6 hcf 8 hcf

Current vs. Proposed MFR Sewer Rates at Various Use Levels (Sample Bill)

Fixed Charges Volumetric Charges
58



Wastewater School Bill Impacts

38

$289.97 $298.67
$335.97

$352.27 $362.84

$402.54 $414.57 $427.01

$469.11

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

$450

$500

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

20 hcf 30 hcf 40 hcf

Current vs. Proposed Sewer Rates at Various Usage Levels (Sample Bill)

Total Charges
59



Wastewater Commercial I*

39

$50.10 $51.60 $54.26

$61.98 $63.84
$67.77

$73.86 $76.08
$81.28

$0

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

$70

$80

$90

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

4 hcf 6 hcf 8 hcf

Current vs. Proposed Sewer Rates at Various Usage Levels (Sample Bill)

Total Charges

60



Wastewater Commercial III*

40

$141.09 $145.32

$166.66 $163.50 $168.41

$191.98 $185.91 $191.49

$217.30

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

Current Rates FY 22
Proposed

FY 23
Proposed

10 hcf 13 hcf 16 hcf

Current vs. Proposed Sewer Rates at Various Usage Levels (Sample Bill)

Total Charges

61



Conclusion and 
Next Steps

• Overall: the revenue increases needed are in-
line with long term inflation

Next Steps
• Board received feedback on rates
• Board votes on rates

41
62



42
63



 

Regular Board Meeting, August 3, 2021 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
From:  CJ Dillon, Office Manager 
Subject:  PUBLIC HEARING ON WATER, SEWER, AND REFUSE COLLECTION 

SERVICES PURSUANT to PROPOSITION 218 (CALIFORNIA 
CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE XIIID). ORDINANCE 95 OF THE CHANNEL 
ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT RATES AND 
REGULATIONS FOR WATER, SEWER, AND REFUSE COLLECTION 
SERVICES  

Item No.  D-3 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

1) Conduct public hearing, receive staff report, public testimony and close the public 
hearing 
2) Perform reading in title only and adoption of Ordinance 95 - effective September 1, 
2021. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Financial impacts are available in the Proposition 218 Notice and Ordinance 

No. 95 proposed to the Board on August 3, 2021.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Subject 1: Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 95: CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT RATES AND REGULATIONS FOR WATER, SEWER, AND REFUSE 
COLLECTION SERVICES 
 
If approved, the effective date for new rates to be implemented will be September 1, 2021. 
  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Ordinance 95 – District Rates and Regulations 
 

64



Ordinance 95 
 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
RATES AND REGULATIONS 

 FOR WATER, SEWER, AND REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICES 
Adopted on August 3, 2021 

Effective as of September 1, 2021 
 
Article I. Definitions 

Section 1.1 Unless the provision or context otherwise requires, the following definitions 
shall govern the construction of the District’s Rate and Regulations: 

(a) “Accessory Dwelling Unit” or “ADU” shall mean an attached or a detached 
residential dwelling unit that provides complete independent living facilities 
for one or more persons and is located on a lot with a proposed or existing 
primary residence. An accessory dwelling unit shall include permanent 
provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same 
parcel as the single-family or multifamily dwelling is or will be situated. 

(b) “Billing Period” shall mean the following:  
(i) The period during which service is provided and for which the customer 

is billed. 
(ii) For water service, billing period means the period of time between meter 

readings for which a customer is billed.   
(iii) All billing periods occur 12 times per calendar year and frequency of bills 

shall be one month (monthly). 
(c) “Board of Directors” shall mean the elected Board of Directors which is the 

governing body of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District. 
(d) “Charge” or “Rate” shall mean the amount of money to be paid by the person 

liable to the District for water service, sewer service, or refuse collection 
service. 

(e) “Construction Site” shall mean real property undergoing construction or 
substantial repairs and/or reconstruction. 

(f)  “Commercial Property” shall mean a site, building, or real property used for 
the exchange or buying and selling of material goods or services, including, 
but not limited to, offices, restaurants, and hotels or motels. 

(g) “Customer” or “Consumer” or “Constituent” means any person liable for a 
water service and/or sewer service connection and/or refuse collection 
services. 

(h) “Date of Demolition” or “Demolition” shall mean the sign-off date of an 
approved demolition permit from the County of Ventura. 

65



(i) “District” shall mean the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
and all territory now or hereafter included within the boundaries of the District. 

(j) “Employee” shall mean all persons engaged in the operation or conduct of any 
water, wastewater, garbage, trash or refuse contractor business  

(k) “Equivalent Residential Unit” or “ERU” shall mean: 
(i) One (1) freestanding single-family residence; or 

(ii) Any dwelling unit, attached or detached, designed to be an independent 
dwelling unit; or 

(iii) Any independent dwelling unit that is part of an apartment complex, 
condominium development, mobile home, or duplex.  

(l) “Fire Line” shall include a fire sprinkler system and/or a UL fire water meter 
and manifold installed in a residential dwelling unit. 

(m) “General Manager” or “Manager” shall mean the General Manager of the 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District or his/her assigned 
designee(s). The General Manager shall be appointed by the Board and shall 
be responsible for the daily oversight and management of operations performed 
by the District. 

(n) “Governmental Property” or “Public Entity Property” shall mean any site, 
structure, building, real property, or works which is owned or occupied by a 
public entity, including, but not limited to: 
(i) Property owned and/or occupied by the Hueneme School District; and 

(ii) Property owned and/or occupied by the County of Ventura. 
(o) “HCF” shall mean Hundred Cubic Feet of water. HCF is a standard unit of 

measurement for water consumption. One (1) HCF equals 748 gallons of 
water. 

(p) “Industrial Property” shall mean any site, structure, building, real property, or 
works which is, or which is designed to be, used for the manufacture, 
processing, or distribution of material, equipment, supplies, food, or 
commodities of any description or which used or designed to be used as a 
sanitarium, hospital, penal institution or charitable institution; together with all 
appurtenances thereto and the surrounding premises under the same ownership 
or control. 

(q) “Multi-Unit Residential Property” shall mean a residential property containing 
two (2) or more residential dwelling units including, but not limited to, a 
duplex with two (2) dwelling units, a triplex with three (3) dwelling units, and 
an apartment complex or other multi-tenant building containing four (4) or 
more dwelling units 

(r) “Nuisance” shall mean anything which is injurious to health, including, but not 
limited to, anything that is indecent or offensive to the senses, an obstruction 
to the free use of property, so as to interfere with the comfortable enjoyment 

66



of life or property, or unlawfully obstructs the free passage or use, in the 
customary manner, of any public park, sidewalk, street, or highway. 

(s) “Occupant” shall mean every resident or possessor of improved real property 
within the District, including, but not limited to, residential property, 
commercial property, industrial property, and/or governmental property. 

(t) “Owner” shall mean the person holding title to real property within the District.  
(u) “Person” means an individual, firm, company, partnership, corporation, 

society, entity, municipality, quasi-municipality, or any commercial 
association or venture, however defined.  

(v) “Real Property,” “Property” or “Properties” shall mean all real property in the 
District, residential, commercial, governmental, and/or industrial, vacant or 
otherwise. 

(w) “Refuse Collection” shall mean the collection, disposal, and transport of solid 
waste and recyclable materials from properties within the District by the 
District or the District’s contractor. 

(x) “Residential Dwelling Unit” or “Dwelling Unit” shall mean an independent 
residential living space, with kitchen facilities, designed for use by one (1) or 
more persons. For purposes of this definition, a residential dwelling unit 
includes, without limitation, a single-family dwelling, one-half (1/2) of a 
duplex, and an apartment within a multi-unit residential building. 

(y) “Residential Property” shall mean any site, structure, building, or real property 
used for residential purposes and containing at least one (1) dwelling unit. 

(z) “Service” shall mean the furnishing of water, sewer, and/or refuse collection 
by the District. 

(aa) “Single-Unit Residential Property” shall mean a residential property 
containing no more than one (1) dwelling unit and one (1) ADU. 

(bb) “Street” shall mean any public or private street or right of way. 
Article II. General Provisions 

Section 2.1 Title. This document shall be known as the “Rate and Regulations for 
District Services” of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District.  
Section 2.2 Applicability. Except as otherwise provided herein, these rates and 
regulations apply to all properties, and the owners and/or occupants of such properties, 
within the District’s service area that receive any of services the District is authorized to 
provide pursuant to Government Code Section 61100. Unless otherwise approved by the 
Board of Directors, all services shall be made in accordance with these rates and 
regulations. 
Section 2.3 Eligibility for District Services.  

(a) All real property within the District shall be eligible to receive water, sewage, 
and refuse collection services by the District or the District’s Contractor on the 

67



condition that the real property is on the current property tax roll for the County 
of Ventura. 

(b) Provision of services may be subject to proof of legal occupancy and 
compliance with all terms and conditions of this Article, including timely 
payment of all service rates and charges.  

Section 2.4 Amendments. Notwithstanding applicable provisions of state law, these 
rates and regulations may be amended by resolution or ordinance at any regular or special 
meeting of the Board of Directors. 
Section 2.5 Rate Setting. Pursuant to Government Code Section 61115, the Board of 
Directors may, by resolution or ordinance, establish rates and other charges to cover the 
cost of providing any of the services the District is authorized to provide. 
Section 2.6 Billing.  

(a) The District shall levy and collect the service rates and charges for all 
properties within the District receiving water service, sewer service, and refuse 
collection service from the District or the District’s Contractor. All charges 
shall be billed by the District.  

(b) To the extent practicable, all such charges for District services shall be billed 
by the District in conjunction with its billings for all water, sewer, and refuse 
collection services. 

(c) Charges for a portion of a month shall be appropriately prorated.  
(d) The owner or occupant of the property receiving service shall make payment 

of the amount owed within twenty-one (21) days of the District’s mailing of 
the billing statement. 

(e) Late Fee. In the event of past due payment of a billing statement, an owner or 
occupant shall be assessed a late fee of (10%) in accordance with the 
procedures established by the Board of Directors.  

(f) Nonpayment. Except as provided in Article III of these Rates and Regulations, 
in the event of nonpayment of a billing statement for service, the District may 
initiate proceedings to discontinue refuse service to the affected property or 
exercise any remedies available to the District pursuant to Government Code 
Section 61115. 

(g) Returned Checks.  
(i) Upon receipt of a returned check taken as payment on a delinquent 

account, the District may deem the account unpaid and the account will 
remain delinquent. The District shall make a reasonable, good-faith effort 
to notify the customer by phone or email of the returned check. 

(ii) If the account is more than 60 days delinquent at the time the District 
received a returned check, a Door Hanger Notice for discontinuation of 
service shall be placed at the service address notifying the customer that 
service will be discontinued in seven (7) business days. 

68



(iii) Services may be disconnected if the amount of the returned check and the 
returned check charge are not paid on or before the date specified in the 
Door Hanger Notice. 

(iv) Any customer issuing a returned check as payment to restore service 
turned off for non-payment may be required to pay cash, credit card or 
certified funds to restore future service disconnections for a period of 12 
months from the date of the returned payment. 

(h) Returned Checks for Previously Disconnected Service. In the event a customer 
tenders a returned check as payment to restore water service previously 
disconnected for non-payment and the District restores service, the District 
may promptly disconnect service without providing further notice. No 48-hour 
notice of termination shall be given in the case of a returned check tendered 
for payment of water charges that were subject to discontinuance. 

(i) Multiple Returned Checks. After three returned checks on a single customer 
account, all amounts paid must be in money orders, cashier’s check, or cash. 

Section 2.7 Disputes and Appeals. If a customer wishes to dispute a charge on a bill, the 
customer has the right to appeal as follows: 

(a) Appeal to Office Manager. The appeal must be in writing, legible, and received 
by the Office Manager within 15 calendar days of the date the bill the customer 
seeks to appeal was issued to the customer. The appeal shall include: 
(i) The basis for the appeal; and 

(ii) Evidence supporting the basis for the appeal; and 
(iii) A suggestion for the resolution of the dispute, if any. 

(b) Upon receipt, the Office Manager shall notify the customer of confirmation of 
receipt of the appeal and, within fifteen (15) calendar days the Office Manager 
shall provide the customer an independent determination of the disputed bill, 
provided to the customer in writing. 

(c) Appeal of Office Manager’s Determination. The Office Manager’s 
determination may be appealed to the General Manager within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of the mailing date of the Office Manager’s determination. The 
appeal of the Office Manager’s determination shall be heard and considered by 
the General Manager within 30 calendar days from the General Manager’s 
receipt of an appeal, but no public hearing is required. The General Manager 
shall provide the applicant notice of the time and place for the appeal hearing. 
The General Manager may, in his or her discretion, affirm, reverse, or modify 
the determination accordingly. The General Manager’s decision shall be final. 

(d) Pending Appeals. The District may not disconnect a customer’s residential 
water service while the customer has an appeal pending. 

Section 2.8 Severability. In the event any section, clause, or portion of these rates and 
regulations is found to be invalid, the validity of the remaining sections of the rates and 
regulations shall not be affected.  

69



Section 2.9 Liability. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to constitute the 
assumption of any duty by the District not otherwise required of it by law.  

Article III. Water Service Fees and Charges 
Section 3.1 Definitions. For purposes of this Article, the following definitions shall 
apply: 

(a) “Commercial” shall include the following:  
(i) any use that is not solely comprised of residential dwelling units including 

those where dwelling units and commercial uses are serviced by a single 
(1) metered water connection; and 

(ii) hotels or motels. 
(b) “Harbor Customers” shall mean those customers who are served water through 

a connection subject to the terms of the 1996 Water Service Agreement 
between the County of Ventura and the District. This includes those areas 
within the lands and water ways owned and operated by the Channel Islands 
Harbor Department. 

(c) “Industrial” shall include any use that is not solely comprised of residential 
dwelling units including those where dwelling units and industrial uses are 
serviced by a single (1) metered water connection. 

(d) “Multi-Family Residential” shall include the following: 
(i) Single-family residences with two (2) or more ADUs; 

(ii) Residential multiplexes with three (3) or more dwelling units serviced 
through a single (1) metered water connection; and 

(iii) “Multi-Family Residential” shall not include any connection that services 
both a dwelling unit and another non-residential use simultaneously. 

(e) “Non-Harbor Customers” shall mean those customers who are served water 
through a connection not subject to the terms of the 1996 Water Service 
Agreement between the County of Ventura and the District. This includes the 
residential subdivisions commonly referred to as Hollywood Beach, 
Hollywood by the Sea, and Silver Stand. 

(f) “Single-Family Residential” shall include the following: 
(i) Single-family residences; 

(ii) Single-family residences with one (1) ADU; and 
(iii) Residential duplexes serviced through a single (1) metered water 

connection 
(g) “Water System” shall mean the District infrastructure, facilities, and water 

rights that provide water service, including without limitation water treatment 
facilities, transmission lines, storage tanks, pumping stations, and production 
wells. 

70



Section 3.2 Intent. Pursuant to the statutory authority provided in Government Code 
Sections 61060 and 61100(a), it is the declared intent of the District to provide water 
service to its constituents for any beneficial use. 
Section 3.3 Base Charges.  

(a) A fixed monthly service charge for water service is based upon the size and 
location of the water meter and are as follows for all water meters within the 
District’s service area that are connected to the District’s water system: 
(i) For Non-Harbor Customers 

1) ¾” meter: $39.79/month 
2) 1” meter: $62.62/month 
3) 1 ½” meter: $119.72/month 
4) 2” meter: $188.22/month 
5) 3” meter: $405.18/month 
6) 4” meter: $724.89/month 

(ii) For Harbor Customers 
1) ¾” meter: $54.79/month 
2) 1” meter: $87.62/month 
3) 1 ½” meter: $169.71/month 
4) 2” meter: $268.22/month 
5) 3” meter: $580.18/month 
6) 4” meter: $1039.89/month 

(b) All customers with a water meter connected to the District’s water system shall 
be liable for the applicable fixed monthly service charge as long as water 
service is immediately available to the customer.   

Section 3.4 Non-Harbor Residential Tiered Usage Rates.  
(a) In addition to the fixed monthly base charge, the following tiered usage rates 

apply to the water delivered through the District’s water system to Non-Harbor 
Residential customers.: 
(i) For Non-Harbor, Single-Family Residential Customers 

1) Tier 1: $4.14/HCF for 0-5 HCF 
2) Tier 2: $4.80/HCF for 6-8 HCF 
3) Tier 3: $6.66/HCF for each HCF beyond 8 HCF 

(ii) For Non-Harbor, Multi-Family Residential Customers 
1) Tier 1: $4.14/HCF for 0-4 HCF 
2) Tier 2: $4.80/HCF for 5-6 HCF 

71



3) Tier 3: $6.66/HCF for each HCF beyond 6 HCF 
(b) HCF for tiered rates shall be based on the meter reading for the connection as 

recorded at the end of each billing period 
Section 3.5 Metered Rates. In addition to the fixed monthly service charge, all Harbor 
Residential, Commercial, Governmental, and Industrial properties within the District with 
a water meter connected to the District’s water system shall be subject to the following 
variable rates: 

(a) Non-Harbor: $4.66/HCF 
(b) Harbor: $5.44/HCF 

Section 3.6 Construction Sites.  
(a) In addition to the fixed monthly service charge, all Construction Sites with a 

water meter connected to the District’s water system shall be subject to the 
metered variable rates in Section 3.5 of this Article. 

(b) Notwithstanding the variable rates in paragraph (a), if a Construction Site 
requires a Fire Hydrant and a Fire Hydrant Meter, an additional fixed monthly 
Fire Hydrant Construction Meter charge of $50.00 shall apply. Following the 
first full billing cycle, the $50.00/month charge shall be prorated to reflect the 
actual number of days of service.    

Section 3.7 Connection Charges. 
(a) Capacity Connection Charge. Except for connection charges subject to the 

1996 Water Service Agreement, any new development within the District’s 
service area requiring a metered service connection to the District’s water 
system shall be subject to a capacity-based connection fee as follows: 
(i) ¾” connection: $6,064.00 (based on equivalency factor:1) 

(ii) 1” connection: $12,128.00 (based on equivalency factor: 2),  
(iii) 1 ½” connection: $24,252.00 (based on equivalency factor: 4) 
(iv) 2” connection: $43,909.00 (based on equivalency factor:7) 
(v) 3” connection: $90,946.00 (based on equivalency factor:15) 

(vi) 4” connection: $181,893.00 (based on equivalency factor: 30) 
(vii) 6” connection: $363,786.00 (based on equivalency factor: 60) 

(b) Connection Charge for Delayed Construction on Vacant Parcels. 
(i) If a capacity connection charge has been paid for a vacant and 

unconnected parcel within the District within five (5) years of the date a 
request for a connection is received, the connection shall not be subject to 
an applicable connection charge.  

(ii) If a capacity connection charge has been paid for a vacant and 
unconnected parcel within the District more than five (5) but less than ten 
(10) years of the date a request for a connection is received, the connection 

72



shall be subject to payment of fifty percent (50%) of the applicable 
connection charge.  

(iii) If a capacity connection charge has been paid for a vacant and 
unconnected parcel within the District over ten (10) years of the date a 
request for a connection is received, the connection shall be subject to full 
payment of the applicable connection charge.  

(c) Connection Charge for Demolished and Replaced Structures. 
(i) Any structure within the District that is constructed to replace a 

demolished structure shall not be subject to the applicable connection 
charge if: 
1)  The demolished structure was properly connected to the District’s 

water service system as evidenced by past payment of an applicable 
connection charge; and 

2) The replacement structure is constructed within five (5) years from the 
date of demolition. 

3) The property owners bear the burden of proof. 
(ii) If a replacement structure is constructed more than (5) years but less than 

ten (10) years after the date of demolition, the connection shall be subject 
to payment of fifty percent (50%) of the applicable connection charge.  

(iii) If a replacement structure is constructed more than ten (10) years after the 
date of demolition, the connection shall be subject to full payment of the 
applicable connection charge. 

(d) Incremental Connection Charges. Notwithstanding any other part of this 
Article, if any replacement structure requires a larger sized water meter, the 
property owner shall pay the difference between the applicable connection 
charges. 

(e) Connection Charges for ADUs. 
(i) Pursuant to Government Code Section 65852.2(f)(4), the District shall not 

assess a connection charge for water service to an ADU that meets the 
description of Government Code Section 65852.2(e)(1)(A). 

(ii) The District may assess connection charges for all ADUs that do not meet 
the description of Government Code Section 65852.2(e)(1)(A). 

(f) Will Serve Letters. A “Water Will Serve Letter” or “Water Availability Letter” 
shall be issued for sewer service upon request, but all applicable connection 
charges shall be paid in full before the construction and installation of a District 
water meter. 

Section 3.8 Relocation or Abandonment of Metered Service.  
(a) Charges for all meter relocation services shall be billed at the District’s actual 

cost to remove and relocate the meter, including, but not limited the costs of 
ordering, shipping, and handling all materials, all other costs incurred related 

73



to and/or in connection with the removal and relocation of the meter, plus an 
additional 15% administration fee. 

(b) The General Manager shall provide a cost estimate for relocation or 
abandonment upon request of a District customer. 

Section 3.9 Fire Lines 
(a) Fire Line Service Charge. In addition to fixed monthly service charge, there 

shall be a fixed monthly service charge for fire line protection services for fire 
lines connected to the District’s water system. The fixed monthly service 
charge for fire lines are based on the size of the connection: 
(i) ¾” connection: $6.77/month 

(ii) 1” connection: $10.21month  
(b) Dedicated Fire Protection Line. If the connection to the District’s water system 

is dedicated solely for fire protection, the fixed monthly rate for the fire line 
shall be based on the diameter of the connection as follows: 
(i) 1” connection: $6.63/month 

(ii) 2” connection: $12.40/month 
(iii) 3” connection: $25.50/month 
(iv) 4” connection: $48.09/month 
(v) 6” connection: $129.16/month 

(vi) 8” connection: $268.98/month 
(c) Capacity Connection Charge for Dedicated Fire Protection Lines. Any new 

development within the District’s service area requiring a metered service 
connection to the District’s water system for a connection dedicated solely to 
fire protection shall be subject to a capacity-based connection fee as follows: 
(i) ¾” connection: $800.00 

(ii) 1” connection: $1,212.00 
(iii) 2” connection: $1,842.00 
(iv) 3” connection: $2,818.00 
(v) 4” connection: $3860.00 

(vi) 6” connection: $5,712.00 
(d) Cost of Installation for Dedicated Fire Protection Line. In addition to the 

connection fee described in paragraph (c), applicants seeking to install a 
connection for a dedicated fire protection line shall be billed at the District’s 
actual cost to install the connection, including, but not limited to, the costs of 
ordering, shipping, and handling all materials, and all other costs incurred 
related to and/or in connection to the installation of the meter, plus an 
additional 15% administration fee. The General Manager shall provide a cost 
estimate for the installation upon request. 

74



(e) Ventura County Fire Protection District Ordinance 31. Ordinance 31 requires 
new and/or remodeled homes to install fire sprinklers under certain specified 
conditions. All water service modifications required for fire sprinkler 
installations required under Ordinance 31 shall be billed at the District’s actual 
cost to modify the connection, including, but not limited to, the costs of 
ordering, shipping, and handling all materials, and all other costs incurred 
related to and/or in connection to the modification, plus an additional 15% 
administration fee. The General Manager shall provide a cost estimate for the 
installation upon request. 

Section 3.10 Delinquent Accounts. 
(a) Delinquent accounts are hereafter identified as any account that remains unpaid 

(and without having made payment arrangements or established an alternative 
payment schedule) by close of business 21 days after issuance of the water bill. 
The following rules apply to the collection of delinquent accounts. 
(i) Small Balance Accounts. Any balance on a bill of $15 or less may be 

carried over, and added to, the next billing period without being assessed 
a late fee or incurring further collection action. Failure to pay an amount 
of $15 or less will not render an account “delinquent.” 

(ii) Late Fees. If payment for a bill of more than $15 is not received by close 
of business on the 21st day after the bill is issued, a late fee of 10% of the 
amount past due will be assessed onto the customer’s account. The due 
date and late fee will be displayed prominently on the customer’s 
subsequent service bill and appear on the Late Notice.  

(iii) Waiver of Late Fees. At the request of the customer, the District may 
waive a late fee if there are extenuating circumstances and the customer 
has not been assessed a late fee for delinquent payment in the preceding 
12 months. The District shall only waive one late fee in a 12-month period. 

(b) Notice for Delinquent Accounts. 
(i) Late Notice for Delinquent Accounts. The District shall provide the 

customer a “Late Notice” informing the customer that the account remains 
past due and is now deemed delinquent. The Late Notice shall also inform 
the customer that termination of service will be forthcoming if the bill 
remains delinquent for more than 60 days. A Late Notice shall be sent as 
soon as the customer’s account is deemed delinquent. The Late Notice 
shall include all the following: 
1) Customer’s name and address; 
2) Amount that is past due; 
3) Date by which payment arrangements are required to avoid 

discontinuation of service; 
4) Description of the process to apply for an amortization plan; 

75



5) Description of the process to dispute or appeal the bill and past due 
amount; and 

6) The District’s phone number and a web link to the District’s 
discontinuation of residential service policy. 

(ii)  When Service Address is Different than Customer’s Billing Address. If 
the customer’s billing address for residential service is different than the 
service address, the District shall also send a Late Notice to the service 
address, addressed to “Occupant” or name of the occupants if known to 
the District. 

(iii) When a Late Notice is Returned to District. The District assumes no 
responsibility for phone or email contact information that has not been 
kept up to date by the customer. If the written notice is returned through 
mail, the District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to notify the 
customer by placing the Late Notice in a conspicuous place on the 
residential property. 

(iv) Residential Service for Tenants with Delinquent Landlords. 
1) For purposes of this subparagraph “residential service” includes water 

service to all single-family residential properties and multi-family 
residential properties in the District’s service area. 

2) If the “Occupant” of the service address is a tenant, and the customer 
of record is the tenant’s landlord, the tenant may opt to become the 
customer of record to whom service will then be billed. However, the 
tenant may only become the customer of record if the landlord’s 
account for the service address has been deemed delinquent. 

3) The tenant must agree to the terms and conditions of service and meet 
the requirements of service. The District may request proof of prompt 
payment of rent or other credit obligation that the District deems 
acceptable. 

4) If the tenant becomes the customer of record, the tenant is not required 
to pay any amount which may be due on the landlord’s account for the 
service address. However, the landlord is still liable for their past due 
amount and will be required to pay the amount past due in order to 
remain in good standing with the District. 

(c) Alternative Payment Arrangements for Delinquent Accounts. Any customer 
who is unable to pay for water service within the normal payment period may 
request an alternative payment arrangement to avoid late fees or disruption of 
service. The District may consider all circumstances surrounding the request 
and make a determination as to whether the payment arrangement is warranted. 
(i) Amortization Plan. Payment arrangements that extend into the next billing 

period are considered an amortization plan, which must be in writing and 
signed by the customer. An amortization plan will amortize the unpaid 
balance over a period defined by the customer, not to exceed 12 months 

76



from the original date of the bill. The amortized payments will be 
combined with, and subject to the due date of, the customer’s regular bill. 
The customer must comply with the terms of the amortization plan and 
remain current as charges accrue in each subsequent billing period. The 
customer may not request further amortization of any subsequent unpaid 
charges while paying delinquent charges pursuant to an amortization plan. 

(ii) Alternative Payments When Discontinuation Poses Serious Health & 
Safety Risk. Residential service shall not be discontinued, and the 
customer shall be offered an alternative payment arrangement if all the 
following conditions (1,2, and 3) are met: 
1) The customer provides certification by a Primary Care Provider 

(General Practitioner, Obstetrician/Gynecologist, Pediatrician, Family 
Practice Physician, Primary Care Clinic, Hospital, or Outpatient 
Clinic) who certifies that the termination will be life-threatening or 
pose a serious threat to the health and safety of any resident of the 
premises where water is provided will obligate the District to enter an 
amortized repayment plan.; 

2) The customer demonstrates that he or she is financially unable to pay 
for residential service within the normal billing cycle. The customer is 
deemed financially unable to pay for service if: 

a) Any member of the customer’s household is a recipient of: 
i) CalWORKs; 

ii) Cal Fresh; 
iii) General Assistance; 
iv) Medi-Cal; 
v) Supplemental Security Income/State Supplementary Payment 

Program; or 
vi) California Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for 

Woman, Infants, and Children. Or, 
b) The customer declares that the household annual income is less 

than 200 percent of the federal poverty level. 
3) The customer is willing to enter into an amortization agreement, the 

alternative payment schedule, or a plan for a deferred or reduced 
payment. 

(iii) Default on Alternative Payment Arrangements.  
1) Failure to comply with the terms of an alternative payment or 

amortization plan within a billing cycle shall deem the account 
delinquent and result in the issuance of a Late Notice, pursuant to 
Section 3.11(b)(1).  

77



2) Failure to comply with the terms of an alternative payment or 
amortization plan for more than 60 days may result in the issuance of 
a Door Hanger Notice, pursuant to Section 3.12. 

Section 3.11 Discontinuation of Service for Nonpayment.  
(a) Written Notice of Discontinuation of Service. The District shall not discontinue 

water service for non-payment until payment by the customer has been 
delinquent for more than 60 days. The District shall contact the customer in 
writing, in the form of a door hanger tag (“Door Hanger Notice”) at least seven 
(7) business days before the discontinuation of water service for non-payment. 

(b) Door Hanger Notice Fee. When a Door Hanger Notice is delivered, an 
additional $15.00 fee is applied to the customer’s account balance. All 
applicable fees must be paid in order to avoid service disconnection and/or 
restore those services in the event they are disconnected. 

(c) Disconnection Deadline. All delinquent water service charges and associated 
fees must be received by the District by 4:30 p.m. on the day specified in the 
Late Notice, pursuant to Section 3.11(b)(1). 

(d) The District may disconnect water service by turning off, and in some cases 
locking off, the meter. Before service is disconnected, the customer shall be 
notified by a Door Hanger Notice at least 7 business days prior to termination 
of service, as provided in paragraph (a) of this section. 

(e) Re-Establishment Notice. At the time service is discontinued and terminated to 
the customer, the District shall place a “Reestablishment Notice” in a 
conspicuous place at the service address. The Reestablishment Notice shall 
provide the customer information on how to restore residential service. 

(f) Reporting of Discontinuations of Residential Service. The District shall report 
the number of annual discontinuations of residential service for inability to pay 
on the District’s website, pursuant to Health & Safety Code Section 116918. 

Section 3.12 Reestablishment of Water Service.  
(a) In order to resume or continue service that has been disconnected for non-

payment, the customer must pay a re-establishment fee. The District shall 
endeavor to reconnect service as soon as practicable but, at a minimum, shall 
restore service before the end of the next regular working day following 
payment of any past due amount and delinquent fees attributable to the 
termination of service. Water service that is turned on by any person other than 
District personnel or without District authorization may be subject to fines or 
additional charges or fees. Any damages that occur as a result of unauthorized 
restoration of service are the responsibility of the customer. 

(b) Re-establishment of Service During Business Hours. If District water service 
has been disconnected, an additional re-establishment fee of $50.00 and all 
outstanding balances shall be paid prior to service being restored. 

(c) Re-establishment of Service After Business Hours. Service restored after 5:00 
p.m. Monday through Friday, weekends, or holidays shall be charged an after-

78



hours re-establishment fee. Service may not be restored after regular business 
hours unless the customer has been informed of the after-hours re-
establishment fee and has signed an agreement acknowledging the fee and 
agreeing to contact the District office no later than noon the following business 
day to pay the subject fee. If the customer requests re-establishment of water 
service outside of regular business hours, the fee to restore service shall be 
$105.00, instead of the $50.00 fee listed above, plus all other outstanding 
balances on the account. 

Article IV. Sewer Service Fees and Charges 
Section 4.1 Definitions. For purposes of this Article, the following definitions shall 
apply: 

(a) “District Wastewater Collection System” shall mean the District’s sewer 
facilities, including, but not limited to, sewer mains, treatment plants, 
interceptors, lift stations, outfalls, and other sewer facilities, owned and/or 
controlled by the District. 

(b) “Single-Family Residential” shall mean one (1) Single-Family residence with 
one (1) ADU. 

(c) “Multi-Family Residential” shall mean any residential structure comprised of 
more than one (1) dwelling unit, including single-family residences with more 
than (1) ADU. 

(d) “Sewer Service Only” shall mean those facilities known as the “Hollywood 
Beach Mobile Home Park” and the “Harbor Walk Condominiums.” 

(e) “Commercial I – Low” shall mean any premises used for general office 
functions, retail, and./or enterprise where it can be reasonably expected that the 
strength of sewerage generated and discharged will be generally low in TSS 
and BOD. 

(f) “Commercial III – High” shall mean any premises used for the purpose of food 
production, restaurant service, and/or where the sewerage generated and 
discharged can be reasonably expected to produce high volumes of flow, high 
TSS and high BOD. 

(g) “School” shall mean any premises owned and operated by the Port Hueneme 
School District. 

(h) “Return to Sewer” or “RTS” shall mean the amount of wastewater that flows 
through the District Wastewater Collection System. Because of technical 
limitations on accurately measuring the flows of sewage from individual 
connections, RTS is calculated based on industry-standard ratios that are a 
function of type of use and mount of water delivered. The RTS factor for 
Single-Family Residential and Multi-Family Residential is based on 
annualized FY 2015 winter usage. 

(i) “Lateral” shall mean those portions of sewer line necessary to connect any 
property to the District Wastewater Collection System including those portions 

79



in the public right of way up to and including the “Wye” connection to the 
District sewer main and those sections extending onto private property. 

Section 4.2 Intent. Pursuant to the statutory authority provided in Government Code 
Sections 61060 and 61100(b), it is the declared intent of the District to provide its 
constituents sewage and wastewater service, including the collection, treatment, and 
disposal of sewage and wastewater, for the welfare and public health and safety of the 
community, to prevent the introduction of pollutants not customarily found or that are 
incompatible with the District’s Waste Water Collection System, to protect District 
personnel who may be affected by wastewater and sludge in the course of their 
employment, and enable sufficient control authority to the District in order to comply with 
local, state, and federal wastewater regulation.  
Section 4.3 Base Charges.  

(a) A fixed monthly service charge for sewer service is based upon the type of 
connection and are as follows for all properties within the District’s service 
area that are connected to the District’s Wastewater Collection System: 
(i) Single-Family Residential: $28.83 per month per connection 

(ii) Multi-Family Residential: $23.05 per month per connection 
(iii) Sewer Service Only: $23.05 per month per connection 
(iv) School: $170.33 per month per connection 
(v) Commercial I – Low: $27.13 per month per connection 

(vi) Commercial II – High: $68.38 per month per connection 
(b) All customers with an active sewer service connection to the District’s 

Wastewater Collection System shall be liable for the applicable fixed monthly 
service charge as long as sewer service is immediately available to the 
customer.   

Section 4.4 Variable Rates. In addition to the fixed monthly base charge, the following 
variable rates are based on metered water consumption and listed RTS and apply for sewer 
service to all properties within the District’s service area that are connected to the District’s 
Wastewater Collection System as follows: 

(a) Single-Family Residential: $6.80 per HCF per month for each metered 
connection calculated at 93% RTS  

(b) Multi-Family Residential: $6.80 per HCF per month for each metered 
connection calculated at 94% RTS 

(c) Sewer Service: $6.80 per HCF per month for each metered connection 
calculated at 94% RTS 

(d) School: $6.49 per HCF per month for each metered connection calculated at 
100% RTS 

(e) Commercial I – Low: $6.57 per HCF per month for each metered connection 
calculated at 100% RTS 

80



(f) Commercial III – High: $8.16 per HCF per month for each metered connection 
calculated at 100% RTS 

Section 4.5 Sewer Connection Charges.  
(a) Each residential/commercial unit served by a 4-inch (4”) or smaller lateral 

connected directly to the District Wastewater Collection System shall be 
assessed a Sewer Connection fee of $8,656.00. 

(b) It is the sole responsibility of the parcel owner to install and maintain the sewer 
lateral connecting the subject property to the District Wastewater Collection 
System. 

(c) Connection Charge for Delayed Construction on Vacant Parcels. 
(i) If a sewer connection charge has been paid for a vacant and unconnected 

parcel within the District within five (5) years of the date a request for a 
connection is received, the connection shall not be subject to an applicable 
sewer connection charge.  

(ii) If a sewer connection charge has been paid for a vacant and unconnected 
parcel within the District more than five (5) but less than ten (10) years of 
the date a request for a connection is received, the connection shall be 
subject to payment of fifty percent (50%) of the applicable sewer 
connection charge.  

(iii) If a sewer connection charge has been paid for a vacant and unconnected 
parcel within the District over ten (10) years of the date a request for a 
connection is received, the connection shall be subject to full payment of 
the applicable sewer connection charge. 

(d) Connection Charges for Demolished and Replaced Structures. 
(i)   Any structure within the District that is constructed to replace a 

demolished structure shall not be subject to the applicable sewer 
connection charge if: 
1)  The demolished structure was properly connected to the District’s 

water service system as evidenced by past payment of an applicable 
connection charge; and 

2) The replacement structure is constructed within five (5) years from the 
date of demolition. 

3) The property owners bear the burden of proof. 
(ii) If a replacement structure is constructed more than (5) years but less than 

ten (10) years after the date of demolition, the connection shall be subject 
to payment of fifty percent (50%) of the applicable connection charge.  

(iii) If a replacement structure is constructed more than ten (10) years after the 
date of demolition, the connection shall be subject to full payment of the 
applicable connection charge. 

81



(e) Incremental Sewer Connection Charge. Notwithstanding any other part of this 
Article, if any replacement structure requires a larger sized water meter or 
sewer connection, the property owner shall pay the difference between the 
applicable connection charges. Water service charges, including water 
connection charges and meter modifications are provided in Article 3. 

(f) Connection Charges for ADUs. 
(i) Pursuant to Government Code Section 65852.2(f)(4), the District shall not 

assess a connection charge to connect an ADU that meets the description 
of Government Code Section 65852.2(e)(1)(A) to the District’s 
Wastewater Collection System. 

(ii) The District may assess connection charges to connect an ADU that does 
not meet the description of Government Code Section 65852.2(e)(1)(A) to 
the District’s Wastewater Collection System. 

(g) Will Serve Letters. A “Sewer Will Serve Letter” or “Sewer Availability Letter” 
shall be issued for sewer service upon request, but all applicable connection 
charges shall be paid in full before the construction and installation of a District 
water meter or lateral connection to the District’s Waste Water Collection 
System. 

Section 4.6 Camera Sewer Lateral.  
(a) In the event that a parcel owner seeks a reconnection to the District Wastewater 

Collection System, the parcel owner shall arrange and pay for a video 
inspection of the sewer lateral.  

(b) The video inspection shall occur with an authorized agent of the District or a 
copy of the video inspection shall be provided to the District in DVD or other 
digital video format.  

(c) Upon review of the video inspection, the District may require the repair or 
replacement of any portion of the lateral shown to have the potential for 
excessive velocities, failures, infiltration of water, roots, soil, or the 
introduction of anything other than waste water into the District Waste Water 
Collection System. 

Section 4.7 Adoption of Certain Articles and Chapters of the City of Port Hueneme 
Municipal Code.  

(a) Pursuant to Government Code Section 61060, except those portions excluded 
under paragraph (b), the Board of Directors adopt by reference and make apart 
of these Rules and Regulations Article VII, Chapter 2 of the City of Port 
Hueneme Municipal Code provided that: 
(i) References to administrative authorities therein be construed, whenever 

applicable based on the context, to refer to the District; 
(ii) Reference to authorities therein designated to the Public Works Director 

be construed, whenever applicable based on the context, to refer to the 
General Manager; 

82



(b) The following portions of Article VII, Chapter 2 of the City of Port Hueneme 
Municipal Code are specifically not part of the referenced adoption in 
paragraph (a), and shall not be deemed adopted by the District: 
(i) Paragraph (2) of Section 7152G; 

(ii) Paragraphs (2) & (3) of Section 7152H; 
(iii) Section 7154D; 
(iv) Section 7155; 
(v) Sections 7156A – 7156L in their entirety; 

(vi) Sections 7157B & 7157C; 
(vii) Section 7159; and 

(viii) Section 7160.  
Article V. Refuse Collection Services 

Section 5.1 Definitions. For purposes of this Article, the following definitions shall 
apply: 

(a) “Contractor” shall mean any person with whom the District may have a 
contract pursuant to Article VI for the collection and disposal of waste from 
any property within the District.  

(b) “Green Waste” shall mean tree trimmings, grass cuttings, dead plants, leaves, 
branches and dead trees, any type of non-chemically treated wood or lumber 
and similar materials. 

(c) “Independent Contractor” shall mean a person other than a “Contractor,” as 
herein defined, with whom an owner or occupant has a collection contract.  

(d) “Receptacle” shall mean a metal or plastic container for refuse, of substantial 
construction, with a tight-fitting lid, and provided with wheels or handles 
sufficient for safe and convenient handling for collection at curbside. 

(e) “Recyclable Materials” shall mean those materials designated by the District 
or the District’s refuse collection and disposal service Contractor which will 
be processed for marketing. 

(f) “Refuse Collection Service” shall mean the collection, transportation, and 
disposal, and all services ancillary to such collection, transportation, and 
disposal, of solid waste and recyclable materials by the District or the District’s 
Contractor within the District’s service area. 

(g) “Solid Waste” shall mean all putrescible and non-putrescible solids, semi-
solids and liquid waste accumulated or delivered for collection and disposal 
within the District and includes, but are not limited to, construction, 
demolition, debris, and bulky waste. 
(i) “Solid Waste” does not include: 

83



1)  Hazardous waste regulated under Health & Safety Code § 25100 et 
seq. and Chapter 10 of Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations; 
and 

2)  Low level radioactive waste regulated under Health & Safety Code § 
114960 et seq. and Subchapter 4, Chapter 4, of Title 17 of the 
California Code of Regulations; and 

3)  Medical waste regulated under the Medical Waste Management Act, 
Health & Safety Code § 117600 et seq., provided that the medical 
waste, whether treated or untreated, is not disposed at a solid waste 
facility. Medical waste which has been treated and which is deemed to 
be solid waste shall be regulated pursuant to this Article; and 

4) Recyclable materials. 
(h) “Prohibited Materials” shall mean all the following: 

(i) Bricks, stones, concrete, cement, plaster, asphalt and other debris incident 
to construction or demolition; 

(ii) Hot ashes; 
(iii) Earth, sod, and sand other than minimal amounts accumulated in ordinary 

cleaning; 
(iv) Any toxic or hazardous materials, chemicals, or waste, including 

flammable or explosive substances such as drain oil and paints; 
(v)  Any medicines, drugs, and/or pills, unless securely enclosed in containers 

which do not in any way indicate the nature of the contents; 
(vi) Appliances and furniture which are bulky or unusually heavy, such as, but 

not limited to, couches, refrigerators, water heaters, and/or similar items. 
(vii) Except where specified, such prohibited materials are specifically 

excluded from the definitions of “Garbage,” “Refuse,” and “Trash.”   
(i)  “Waste,” “Trash,” “Garbage,” or “Refuse” shall mean solid waste and 

recyclable material accumulations consisting of, but not limited to, garbage, 
household trash, vegetative waste, yard trash and business trash which are 
subject to decomposition, decay, putrefaction or the generation of noxious or 
offensive gases or odors, or which during or after decay, may serve as breeding 
or feeding material for insects or animals. 

Section 5.2 Intent. Pursuant to the statutory authority provided in Government Code 
Sections 61060 & 61100(c) and Public Resources Code Section 40059, it is the declared 
intent of the District to provide for the collection and removal of trash, garbage, and refuse 
from real property within the District in accordance with the provisions of this Article and 
the terms and conditions of any contract entered into between the District and Contractor(s) 
pursuant to Article VI. 
Section 5.3 Exclusive Right to Regulate Refuse Collection.  

84



(a) The collection, removal, and disposal of all refuse shall be performed by the 
District or its authorized Contractor, and no other person shall engage in the 
business of collection, removal and disposal of trash unless authorized to do so 
by the District. 

(b) The provisions of this section do not apply to any owner and/or occupant who 
has entered into a contract with an Independent Contractor to collect and 
dispose of refuse or prohibited materials from property for which such services 
are not provided by the District or its Contractor. 

(c) Owners’ and Occupants’ Exemption. The following shall be exempted from 
this provision: 
(i) Owners’ and occupants’ removal and conveyance of an occasional load of 

refuse or prohibited materials, not containing garbage, from their own 
property to a legal point of disposal; and 

(ii) Hauling of grass cuttings, pruning’s, manure or other refuse or rubbish not 
containing garbage, by gardeners or gardening services working on such 
property. 

Section 5.4 Supervision of Collection.  
(a) The General Manager shall supervise the collection and removal of all garbage, 

refuse, waste, and trash within the District. 
(b) The Board of Directors may adopt by resolution and ordinance, adopt rules, 

regulations, terms and conditions for the administration, operation, and use and 
maintenance of facilities for or related to the collection, removal, and disposal 
of all garbage, refuse, waste, and trash within the District pursuant to 
Government Code Section 61060(b). 

Section 5.5 Unlawful Collection, Interference, or Deposit of Trash or Prohibited  
  Materials on Streets.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to deposit, or cause or permit to be 
deposited, any trash or prohibited materials upon or in any public sidewalk, 
street, road, highway, court, or alley within the District, or upon any property 
owned or leased by the District, except in receptacles or areas specifically 
designated or provided for that purpose. 

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person other than an owner, occupant, District staff, 
or District’s Contractor and Contractor’s employees to: 
(i) Interfere in any manner with any waste receptacle or the contents thereof, 

or place contents within or remove contents from any receptacle without 
consent of the owner or occupant;  

(ii) Remove or disturb any solid waste, green waste, or recyclable materials, 
as defined herein, from the place where the same has been placed for 
collection; 

85



(iii) Collect or haul away any solid waste, green waste, or recyclable materials, 
as defined herein, from the place where the same has been placed for 
collection; 

(iv) Transport any solid waste, green waste, or recyclable materials, as defined 
herein, from the place where the same has been placed for collection. 

(c) It shall be unlawful for any person, other than the District or the District’s 
Contractor, or an Independent Contractor as specified herein, or an owner or 
occupant as specified in Section 5.3(c), to remove or convey, or cause or permit 
to be removed or conveyed, any solid waste, green waste, or recyclable 
materials, as defined herein, upon any public sidewalk, street, road, highway, 
court, or alley within the District, or engage in the business of trash collection, 
removal and disposal within the District, including the collection and disposal 
of solid waste, green waste, or recyclable materials, as defined herein. 

(d) It shall be unlawful for any person, other than the District or the District’s 
Contractor, or an Independent Contractor as specified herein, or an owner or 
occupant as specified in Section 5.3(c), to place, store, dispose, deposit, or 
cause or permit to be placed, stored, disposed, or deposited, any solid waste, 
green waste, or recyclable materials, as defined herein, upon any public 
sidewalk, street, road, highway, court, or alley within the District, or engage in 
the business of trash collection, removal and disposal within the District, 
including the collection and disposal of solid waste, green waste, or recyclable 
materials, as defined herein. 

(e) It shall be unlawful for any person to cause or permit the burning of refuse, 
garbage, trash, or waste of any kind.  

(f) A violation of this provision shall be a misdemeanor punishable by 
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than thirty (30) days, or by a fine 
of not more than five-hundred dollars ($500.00), or by both such fine and 
imprisonment.  

(g) Where a District employee determines that a person is unlawfully collecting or 
interfering with the collection of solid waste or recyclables under these 
provisions, that employee may either notify the appropriate authorities or issue 
a warning to the offender on a form drafted and approved by the District. Such 
form shall notify the offender of the District’s authority, the nature of the 
offense, and the possibility of future criminal prosecution. 

Section 5.6 Accumulation of Trash or Prohibited Materials on Property. 
(a) Every owner or occupant of real property shall properly store accumulations 

of trash or prohibited materials such that they shall not be carried or deposited 
by the elements upon any public sidewalk, street, road, highway, court, alley, 
or public place within the District or upon the private property of another 
person. 

(b) No personal shall deposit, store, or cause or permit to be deposited or stored, 
any trash or prohibited materials upon any property owned or occupied by such 

86



person so that such trash or prohibited materials constitute a “nuisance,” as 
defined in these Rates or Regulations. 

(c) Every person owning or occupying property where there is any accumulation 
of garbage or refuse shall cause the same to be lawfully removed or disposed 
of at least once each calendar week. 

(d) No person owning or occupying property shall set out or cause to be set out for 
collection during any week garbage or refuse for collection other than garbage 
or refuse originating on that same property. 

(e) No person may discard prohibited materials through the weekly collection 
process described in this article. All persons in possession of such prohibited 
materials shall either lawfully dispose of such materials themselves or make 
arrangements with the District for the removal and disposal of such materials.  

Section 5.7 Solid Waste & Recycle Receptacles. 
(a) Registration. All solid waste & recycle receptacles s provided by the District 

or District’s Contractor shall bear a registration number, be kept at their 
designated property address, and shall not be painted by the occupant. 

(b) Single-Unit Residential Property. Each single-unit residential property shall be 
provided with a solid waste & recycle receptacle(s), including lid, of a size and 
type approved by the District. 

(c) Multi-Unit Residential, Commercial, and Public Entity Properties.  
(i) Each multi-unit residential, commercial, and/or public entity property 

shall be provided with one (1) or more three cubic yard (3 yd3) bin(s), 
including lid, and suitable for locks, of a type approved by the District. 

(ii) At the District’s discretion, commercial food service/restaurant 
establishments shall be liable for an additional surcharge for fly-tight lids 
for such bins. 

(d) Construction Site Bins. Upon the District’s request, a construction site shall 
maintain at least one (1) or more three cubic yard (3 yd3) bin(s), including lid, 
of a type approved by the District. Construction bin service shall be determined 
by the District upon processing a “Will Serve” letter or meter service request, 
or upon the District’s inspection of a construction site. 

(e)  Additional Receptacles.  
(i) Additional solid waste and/or recycle receptacles for a property are 

available upon request of either: 
1) The occupant or owner of the property; or 
2) The General Manager, upon evidence that the solid waste or recycle 

receptacle(s) placed on the property is generally insufficient to hold 
the accumulation of trash from the property, or that solid waste or 
recyclables needs to be collected more frequently. 

87



(ii) If the General Manger makes the request for additional receptacles, the 
General Manager shall notify the property’s occupant or owner in writing 
of the District’s intentions. A written notice of the placement of additional 
receptacle (s) with a schedule of service rates to be paid for the additional 
receptacle (s) shall be sent to the property owner or occupant of record.  

(f) Maintenance of Receptacles. Owners and occupants shall keep receptacles in 
a clean and sanitary condition. 

(g) Non-Permitted Receptacles. Apart for the exception of District-approved 
receptacles for recyclables, no other trash containers or receptacles other than 
those specifically authorized herein may be used to deposit trash for collection 
by the District or the District’s Contractor. Trash deposited in non-permitted 
receptacles (e.g., disposable plastic bags, refuse bundles, oil drums, wooden 
crates, waste baskets, cardboard boxes, and paper bags) shall not be collected. 

Section 5.8 Collection of Solid Waste and Recycling 
(a) Placement of Receptacles. Owners or occupants must locate receptacles in a 

manner that fully complies with both District requirements and applicable 
Ventura County Housing Code provisions.  
(i) No owner or occupant or any other person shall place or cause to be placed 

any trash container or receptacles on any public sidewalk, street, road, 
highway, court, alley, or public place within the District at any time other 
than on the days established for the collection of solid waste and 
recyclables.  

(ii) Receptacles shall be placed for collection within two (2) feet of the 
curbside after 5 p.m. on the day immediately preceding a scheduled 
collection day. 

(iii) Receptacles shall be removed and returned after collection to an area 
within the property by 7 p.m., where such receptacles, if feasible, cannot 
be viewed from adjacent properties or from any street, road, or highway 
in front of or to the rear of said property.  

(iv) Exceptions Due to Practical Difficulty. The District may make exceptions 
where site conditions prevent an owner or occupant from complying with 
the above stated receptacle placement requirements. The District shall 
only grant exceptions where the owner or occupant: 
1) Demonstrates that there is no area on the site where the receptacles 

cannot be viewed from adjacent properties or from any street, road, or 
highway in front of or to the rear of said property; and 

2)  Stipulates that receptacles shall be located in the most unobtrusive 
manner under the circumstances as determined by the District.   

(b) Improper Storage.  

88



(i) The General Manager may impose a surcharge or fine on any owner, 
occupant, or person who violates the provisions of this section according 
to the following schedule: 
1)  First Offense: $25.00 
2)  Second Offense: $50.00 
3)  Third Offense: $75.00 
4)  Each additional Offense: $100.00 

(ii) Prior to levying such surcharges, the District shall either personally deliver 
or send by first class mail at least (1) written notice to the owner or 
occupant warning of the potential surcharge in the event of future non-
compliance 

(c) Walk-In Service. Owners and occupants of residential property may request 
“walk-in” service from the District or the District’s Contractor at the rate 
specified by the District.  

(d) Limitations. Each property shall be entitled to have collected and disposed of 
by the District or the District’s Contractor the amount of solid waste or 
recyclables equaling the volume of the receptacle(s) placed on the property, as 
provided in Section 5.8. Any solid waste or recyclables beyond this volume 
limitation shall not be part of the basic refuse collection service specified in 
this article and shall not be collected by the District or the District’s Contractor 
unless directed otherwise. 

(e) Holiday Collection. There shall be no trash collection by the District or the 
District’s Contractor on the following holidays: New Year’s Day; Memorial 
Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; Thanksgiving Day; Christmas Day; and 
any other holiday unspecified herein during which the landfill customarily used 
by the District or the District’s Contractor is closed. If a weekly scheduled 
pick-up falls on any of these days, solid waste and recycling shall be placed for 
collection and picked up on the following business day. 

Section 5.9 Refuse Collection Rates.  
(a) Findings. The Board of Directors finds that the service rates provided herein 

are for the purpose of: 
(i) Meeting contractual operating expenses of the District’s refuse collection 

services Contractor; and 
(ii) Meeting the District’s general and administrative expenses in the 

administration and enforcement of the District’s refuse collection and 
disposal rules, regulations, and agreements. 

(b) Effective Date. The following rates shall become effective September 1, 2021 
and shall be subject to periodic adjustment by the Board of Directors. 

(c) Customer Liability. Every owner and/or occupant of a property in receipt of a 
District-approved receptacle and/or bin shall be liable for the collection rates 

89



for refuse collection services established by this article as long as such service 
is immediately available to the owner and/or occupant at said property.  

(d) Collection Rates. 
(i) Single-Unit Residential and Commercial Standard Trash Collection. 

Standard refuse service for single-unit residential and commercial 
properties includes a 64-gallon solid waste receptacle and a 64-gallon or 
96-gallon recycle receptacle. Rates are as follows: 
1)  Standard Service and one (1) collection per week: 

$32.73/receptacle/month  
2)  Walk-In Service and one (1) collection per week: 

$52.08/receptacle/month  
3) Walk-In Service and two (2) collections per week: 

$104.16/receptacle/month 
4) Additional empties (barrels): $11.49/receptacle 

(ii) Multi-Unit Residential Property and Commercial Properties with Bins. 
Standard refuse service for multi-unit residential and commercial 
properties with bins includes a three cubic yard (3 yd3) bin. Rates are as 
follows: 
1)   Standard Service and one (1) collection per week: 

$182.64/bin/month  
2)  Standard Service and two (2) collections per week: 

$285.65/bin/month  
3)  Standard Service and three (3) collections per week: 

$361.84/bin/month 
4)  One-time additional collections: $76.97/bin/collection 
5) Locks for Commercial Bins: $2.75 

(iii) Additional Receptacles 
1) 64 gallon Solid Waste: $16.92/receptacle/month 
2) 64 or 96 gallon Recycle:  $3.08/receptacle/month 
3) Additional Solid Waste for Walk-In Service: 

$25.68/receptacle/month 
4) Additional Recycle for Walk-In Service: $7.57/receptacle/month 

(iv) Temporary Bins 
1) 3-Cubic Yard Bin: $110.18/bin (includes delivery, initial load, and 

removal) 
2) Additional Bin Collections: $110.18/bin 
3) Daily Rental Fee: $2.67/day after seven (7) days. 

90

CJ Dillon
I haven’t change (ii) 1,2 and 3 till I speak with Pete



(e) Construction Bin Services. 20 or 40 Cubic Yard Construction Bin Service is 
available at rates and fees stipulated in the agreement for Refuse Collection 
Service between the District and the District’s Contractor. Rates are subject 
to modification based on tipping, surcharge or other fee increases associated 
with the provision of service.  

(f) Special Service Collections. The District or the District’s Contractor shall 
provide special service collection for those discarded appliances and furniture 
items whose size, bulk, volume, and/or composition prevents the discarded 
items from fitting within the provided receptacle. These items include, but are 
not limited to: mattresses; chairs, couches; stoves; refrigerators; and water 
heaters.  
(i) Special Service Collection shall be available at the request of an owner or 

occupant and subject to the District’s approval.  
(ii) Charges for Special Service Collection shall be as follows: 

1)  $3.00 for each miscellaneous trash bag (33 gallons) 
2) $25.00 for each of the following items: televisions, mattress or box 

springs, couch/stuffed chairs, two burner stoves, washer/dryers 
3)  $30.00 for each of the following items: four burner stoves, 50-60-

gallon water heaters 
4)  $30.00 for each dump truck or contractor load  
5)  $35.00 for each of the following items: 80-100-gallon water heaters, 

sleeper couches 
6)  $35.00 for each refrigerator (19 cubic ft or less) 
7) $40.00 for each refrigerator (more than 19 cubic ft.) 

Section 5.10 Surcharges.  
(a) Excess Solid Waste Surcharge. The General Manager may impose an excessive 

solid waste volume surcharge upon any owner or occupant who repeatedly sets 
out for pick-up a volume of solid waste in excess of the weekly limits. The 
amount of the surcharge shall be:  
(i) $35.00 for each additional full solid waste receptacle or container utilized 

to pick up the excess solid waste; or 
(ii)  A pro-rated amount depending upon the volume of excess solid waste. 

(b) Failure to Recycling Surcharge. The General Manager may impose a Failure 
to Recycle Surcharge upon any owner or occupant that causes solid waste, 
hazardous waste, e-waste, or other non-recyclable materials to be placed in 
recycle receptacles or who repeatedly causes recyclable materials to be placed 
in solid waste receptacles. The amount of the surcharge shall be $25.00 for 
each failure to recycle.  

91



(c) Prior to levying such surcharges, the District shall either personally deliver or 
send by first class mail at least (1) written notice to the owner or occupant 
warning of the potential surcharge in the event of future non-compliance 

Article VI. Contract for Refuse Collection Services 
Section 6.1 Definitions. 

(a) “Contractor” shall mean any person with whom the District may have a 
contract pursuant to this article for the collection and disposal of waste from 
any property within the District.  

Section 6.2 Authority. Pursuant to Government Code Section 61100(b) and Public 
Resources Code Section 40059, the District may enter into a contract with any person to 
provide trash collection and disposal services for real property within the District. 
Section 6.3 Award of Contract.  

(a) All decisions regarding the procurement of contractor services shall be within 
the discretion of the Board of Directors. 

(b) The District shall review all applications and requests received from 
prospective contractors to supply refuse collection services to the District and 
provide its recommendation to the Board of Directors.  

(c) Thereafter, the Board of Directors shall hold a public hearing, at which the 
award or renewal of an existing contract or contracts shall be made. 

(d) This provision shall not be construed to require the District to solicit 
applications, proposals, or bids from prospective contractors. 

Section 6.4 Compensation. The terms of compensation to Contractor shall be specified 
in the District’s refuse collection services agreement. 
Section 6.5 Insurance.  

(a) No contract shall be awarded nor shall Contractor operate a refuse or garbage 
truck within the District’s service area until Contractor files with the District a 
valid, unexpired certificate of liability insurance, evidencing insurance 
coverage with the following minimum limits: 
(i) Bodily Injury:  

1) $3,000,000/person; 
2) $3,000,000/accident; and 
3) $3,000,000/aggregate products 

(ii) Property Damage:  
1) $3,000,000/accident; 
2) $3,000,000/aggregate operations;  
3) $3,000,000/aggregate products; and 
4) $3,000,000/aggregate contractual. 

92



(b) Contractor’s insurance policy or policies shall be in a form and with a licensed 
insurance company authorized to do business within the State of California and 
approved by the District.  

(c) The insurance certificate shall provide that the insurance thereby evidenced 
shall not be cancelled, allowed to lapse or expire, or be reduced in amount 
during the term of any such refuse collection contract, unless the District is  
given at least a thirty (30) day notice, in writing, by the insurer prior to any 
such cancellation, lapse, expiration, or reduction in coverage. 

(d) A lapse of the minimum insurance required by this provision for any reason 
shall result in automatic termination of the District’s agreement with 
Contractor. 

Section 6.6 Bonding. Contractor shall be required to furnish a performance bond 
payable to the District in an amount sufficient to guarantee Contractor’s performance. This 
bonding requirement shall be specified in the District’s agreement with Contractor and 
shall be conditioned on the faithful performance of the duties imposed by this provision 
and the terms and agreements in the District’s contract with Contractor. 
Section 6.7 Required Provisions. The following performance specifications shall be 
included, at least by reference, in all refuse collection service contracts made by the District 
with a Contractor: 

(a) Office. Contractor shall maintain an office readily accessible to District officers 
and owners and/or occupants of property receiving refuse collection service 
within the District. The office shall remain open from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, except on holidays. 

(b) Emergency Number. Contractor shall have a telephone number listed under its 
name in the local telephone directory. During non-office hours, as specified 
herein, Contractor shall be available through said telephone number to provide 
emergency services. 

(c) Route Schedules. Contractor shall file with the District a schedule and map 
showing its collection routes and the day or days on which each route is used. 
The collection schedule shall be subject to approval by the General Manager 
and shall be maintained unless a change therein is approved by the General 
Manager, in writing, not less than two (2) weeks prior to any and all changes. 
Contractor shall provide notice of any such changes to each property in the 
affected route. 

(d) Notice.  
(i) At Contractor’s expense, Contractor shall distribute to all owners and 

occupants printed information and instructions relating to collection routes 
and schedules, handling requirements for types of refuse, service rates, 
District notices, and any other information relating to waste collection that 
the District may require from time to time.  

(ii) In the event of route change(s) or change(s) in scheduled collection days, 
Contractor shall provide occupants with at least two (2) weeks written 

93



notice, sent by prepaid US Mail or by personal service, notifying each 
owner and/or occupant of all the following:  
1) the day(s) of the week on which waste shall be collected if the change 

alters the existing schedule; 
2) that the change has been approved by the General Manager; 
3) the day(s) of the week upon which future collections will be made; 
4) the name, address, and telephone number of Contractors; and 
5) any other additional information deemed necessary by the General 

Manager. 
(iii) All notices shall be prepared by the District or approved in advance by the 

General Manager. 
(e) Equipment Specifications. Contractor’s equipment shall meet the following 

specifications: 
(i) All trucks used for refuse collection services shall be metal-lined and non-

leaking and shall be securely covered and closed, except during loading 
and unloading, to limit odors and prevent flies and insects from entering 
such trucks to the furthest extent possible. 

(ii) All trucks shall be cleansed daily and thoroughly disinfected at least once 
a week.  

(iii) All trucks shall carry, at all times, at least: 
1) One (1) broom; 
2) One (1) shovel; 
3) One (1) five pound (5 lb.) dry chemical fire extinguisher classified 

ABC multi-purpose; and 
4) An approved compound required to absorb and clean any liquid spills. 

(iv) All trucks shall have Contractor’s firm or business name and telephone 
number painted in letters no less than three inches (3”) in height on both 
sides of the truck. 

(v) All trucks shall at all times be kept in good and safe operating condition 
and meet all equipment and mechanical operating requirements of state 
law, including, but not limited to, all requirements of the California 
Vehicle Code and the California Code of Regulations, as those 
requirements may apply to each truck. 

(vi) All trucks shall be subject to inspection at any time by the General 
Manager to ensure compliance with these requirements.  

(f) Receptacles and Bins. Contractor shall provide receptacles and/or bins in the 
following manner: 
(i) Contractor shall assign each receptacle and/or bin a registration number. 

94



(ii) Contractor shall provide each residential property at least one (1) solid 
waste receptacle and one (1) recycle receptacle, including lid, of a size and 
type approved by the District. 

(iii) Contractor shall provide each multi-unit residential, commercial, and/or 
public entity property at least one (1) or more three-cubic yard (3 yd3) 
trash bin(s), including lid, and suitable locks, of a type approved by the 
District. 

(iv) Contractor shall provide construction sites with bins, as necessary, of a 
type approved by the District. 

(v) Contractor shall provide additional solid waste and/or recycle receptacles 
and/or bins upon the request of:  
1) the District; or  
2) an owner and/or occupant, as communicated by the District. 

(g)  Collection.  Contractor shall adhere to the following: 
(i) Contractor shall faithfully and regularly collect and remove all garbage 

and refuse properly left for collection by property owners and/occupants 
within the District in a prompt, thorough, and workmanlike manner. 

(ii) Collection of waste within the District shall be confined to Monday 
through Friday between the hours of 7 a.m. and 6 p.m. Contractor may 
make collections on Saturdays if a holiday occurs within the preceding six 
(6) days. 
1) The General Manager may authorize collection of waste on such days 

and during such hours as the General Manager deems appropriate if, 
in the judgment of the General Manager, conditions warrant a 
temporary departure from the days and hours of collection.  

(iii) To the extent feasible, collection on each route shall commence at the 
same point, at the same time, and follow the same route each time 
collections are made. 

(iv) Contractor shall immediately pick up and remove any and all trash or any 
other material which spilled or dropped on public or private property 
during collection, transportation, or disposal of waste. 
1) Any expense incurred by the District in the pick-up, removal, or 

disposal of any spilled or dropped waste or any other materials shall 
be immediately paid by Contractor upon presentation of a written 
statement by the District of the District’s expenses incurred, or in the 
alternative may be offset against the amount owed to Contractor in 
Contractor’s proceeding billing cycle.  

(v) After collecting waste from receptacles and/or bins, Contractor shall 
return the receptacle and/or bin in an upright position where it was 
collected. 

95



(vi)  Contractor shall not place any receptacle and/or bin in the roadway 
portion of any street, nor on any public sidewalk to block the use of the 
sidewalk to pedestrians, or on private property other than that of the owner 
or occupant. 

(vii) Contractor shall not throw receptacles from its trucks to the ground, nor 
cause other unnecessary noise during the collection process.  

(viii) Should any trash not be collected by Contractor from a property on a 
regular collection day, Contractor shall attach a tag not less than three 
inches by five inches (3” x 5”) in size to the property’s receptacle(s) and 
shall state thereon the reasons for its refusal to collect such waste. 
1) After each day’s collection, Contractor shall immediately advise the 

District, in writing, of all such notices given by Contractor. 
(ix) Contractor shall immediately notify the General Manager of any incident 

involving damage or potential damage to any person or property within 
the District caused or permitted by or involving Contractor. Contractor 
shall follow such notice by submitting a written report to the District of 
any such incident within five (5) days of the incident.    

(x) Contractor shall report to the District in a timely manner any property or 
owner or occupant that routinely overfills their waste receptacle(s).  

(h) Special Service Collections. Contractor shall provide special service collection 
as provided in Section 5.10(e) of these Rates and Regulations at Contractor’s 
sole expense. 

(i) Complaints.  
(i) Contractor shall maintain a written record of all complaints received 

regarding Contractor’s services, receptacles, bins, or any aspect of 
Contractor’s performance, including the following:  
1) the name and address of the complaining party; 
2) a description of the complaint; 
3) the time the complaint was received; 
4) the action taken in response to the complaint; and 
5) the time the responsive action was taken. 

(ii)  The record shall be kept at Contractor’s office and shall be available for 
inspection or duplication at all reasonable times by the General Manager 
or Board of Directors. 

(iii) Should any owner or occupant report to the General Manager that a 
complaint has not been resolved to the complaining party’s satisfaction, 
the General Manager may require the Contractor to present a detailed 
report outlining the nature of the complaint and the proposed remedies or 
actions taken to resolve said complaint.  

96



(iv) If the General Manager determines that the Contractor’s proposed 
remedies and/or actions taken to resolve the complaint are insufficient to 
adequately resolve the complaint, the General Manger may require 
Contractor to carry out an alternative remedy that the General Manager 
reasonably believes will resolve the complaint. 

(v) Any such remedies shall be performed by Contractor at no expense to the 
District unless otherwise specified by the General Manager.  

(j) Permits.  
(i) Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and affect all permits and 

licenses required according to local, state, and/or federal law or any other 
governmental agency with jurisdiction over waste collection and disposal 
services described herein.  

(ii) Contractor shall immediately notify the District, in writing, of any 
proceeding or action to revoke, suspend, or materially affect Contractor’s 
permits or licenses. 

(k) Compliance with Laws and Regulations. Contractor shall comply with all 
local, state, and federal laws, regulations, and ordinances pertaining to 
Contractor’s waste collection and disposal operation. 

(l) Reports and Financial Information. Contractor shall provide the District such 
financial information concerning Contractor, and such periodic reports on its 
current collection services within District, as required by the refuse collection 
services agreement between the District and Contractor.  

Section 6.8 Assignment or Transfer. No Contractor shall assign or transfer its rights 
within its contract with the District to any other person without the written consent of the 
General Manager.  
Section 6.9 Termination. In the event a Contractor violates any of the specific terms, 
conditions, and/or requirements of its agreement with the District, or in violation of these 
Rules and Regulations, or any other local, state, or federal law, rule, or regulation, either 
now in effect or hereafter enacted relating to the collection, disposal, or transportation of 
waste, the District may be terminate its refuse collection contract with Contractor. 
Section 6.10 Reservation of Rights. Nothing in these Rules and Regulations shall be 
interpreted as limiting the retained rights and powers of the District regarding regulating 
or providing waste collection and disposal service within the District’s service area 
pursuant to Government Code Sections 61060 and 61100 and Public Resources Code 
Section 40059. Each Contractor is put on notice and agrees by its execution of an agreement 
with the District that among the various rights and powers of the District, which the District 
reserves and may exercise, and which are not diminished or waived by the issuance of a 
collection contractor, is the District’s right and power to: 

(a) Repeal or amend the whole or any provision of these Rates and Regulations; 
(b) Exclusively undertake all waste collection and disposal services within the 

District; 

97



(c) To grant and contract with one or more persons for waste and disposal services 
within the District; 

(d) Require Contractor(s) to deposit refuse located within the District at a legal 
disposal site specified by the District and located outside District boundaries; 

(e) Require Contractor(s) to collect and dispose of waste collected within the 
District in a manner or according to methods prescribed by the District; and/or 

(f) Establish specific routes within the District for Contractor(s) and to limit 
Contractor’s operations within the District to such routes.  

Article VII. Abatement of Nuisances 
Section 7.1 Authority. Pursuant to Government Code Section 61100, the District may 
exercise the power of a fire protection district to abate public nuisances.  
Section 7.2 Nuisances. The accumulation on property of trash or prohibited materials, 
including but not limited to weeds, rubbish, brush, any grass, hay, straw, vines, stubble, 
construction materials or debris, litter, hazardous materials, waste petroleum, or any 
flammable or combustible materials, such that the accumulation represents a threat to the 
public health or safety, shall be deemed a public nuisance and may be abated by the District 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 13879.  
Section 7.3 Procedure. Any abatement efforts by the District shall be carried on 
pursuant to the procedures set forth in Health and Safety Code Section 14875 et seq.  
Section 7.4 Notice. If the General Manager determines that a public nuisance exists as 
defined in Section 6.2, the General Manager shall notify the occupant and/or the owner of 
the affected property, if different from the occupant, of the existence of the nuisance.  
Section 7.5 Opportunity to Cure. The District shall provide the parties an opportunity 
to abate or cause the nuisance to be abated within legal means as provided in this article 
within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of such notice from the General Manager. If the 
occupant or owner of the affected property does not abate or cause the nuisance to be abated 
within said ten (10)-day period, then the District shall follow the abatement procedures 
specified in Health amid Safety Code Section 14875 et seq. 
Section 7.6 Costs of Abatement. The expenses of abatement shall be borne by the 
owners of the property on which the accumulation of materials constituting a nuisance has 
occurred, in accordance with Health amid Safety Code Section 14875 et seq. 
Section 7.7 Abandoned Vehicles.  

(a) Inoperative, unlicensed, or unregistered vehicles which are considered 
abandoned vehicles pursuant to the County Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 
Ordinance shall not be permitted on any vacant property within the District and 
any accumulation of a vehicle or vehicles on any vacant property shall be 
deemed a public nuisance.  

(b) The General Manager shall document the make; model, color, license number 
and vehicle identification number of the abandoned vehicle and report same to 
the County of Ventura for removal. 

98



Section 8: Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective at 12:01 a.m. on September 1, 2021. 

 

Section 9: Publication 
 

Upon adoption, this Ordinance shall be published in title and general description only in a newspaper of 
general circulation within the District’s general area of service. 

 

Section 10: Severability 
 

In the event that any section, clause or portion of this Ordinance is found invalid, the validity of the 
remaining sections of the Ordinance shall not be affected. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Board of Directors on this 3rd day of August, 2021, by the following vote: 

      AYES: 

      NOES: 

     ABSENT: 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

SEAN DEBLEY, BOARD PRESIDENT 

 

ATTEST: 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________________ 
PETER MARTINEZ, GENERAL MANAGER 

 

 

___________________________________________ 
JOHN MATHEWS, GENERAL COUNSEL 

 

99


	08-03-2021 Special Board  Meeting Agenda
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	NOTICE & AGENDA

	7-13-21 Regular Board Meeting Minutes Draft (1) (1)[8593]
	Final Budget Staff Report 8.3.21 (1) (1)
	BACKGROUND:
	DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

	DRAFT BUDGET_001
	TEST PROP218
	Resolution 21-01
	Channel Islands Beach CSD prop 218
	Channel Islands Public Hearing Presentation Aug 3_
	Slide Number 1
	Project Team
	Slide Number 3
	Terms You Will Hear Tonight
	What Is Funded By The Utility Rates You Pay
	Legal Environment of Rate Making
	Proposition 218 Requirements
	Why Rate Changes Are Needed
	Slide Number 9
	Inflation Assumptions�
	The Below Water CIP is Funded by Rate Revenue
	The Below Sewer CIP is Funded by Rate Revenue
	These Water Purchases are Funded by Rate Revenue
	Rate Revenue Pays for Debt Service 
	Assumed Reserve Balances
	Reserve Targets
	Slide Number 17
	Financial Health without Rate Increases
	Financial Health
	Slide Number 20
	Water Fixed Charges
	Water Fire Charges
	Water – Volumetric Rates
	Slide Number 24
	Single Family Residential Bill Impacts – ¾” Meter
	MFR Bill Impacts – 2 DUs, ¾” Meter
	Commercial – ¾” Meter
	Commercial – 3” Meter, Harbor
	Slide Number 29
	Financial Health without Rate Increases
	Financial Health with Rate Increases
	Slide Number 32
	Wastewater Fixed Charges
	Wastewater – Volumetric Rates
	Slide Number 35
	Wastewater Single Family Residential Bill Impacts – ¾” Meter
	Wastewater MFR Bill Impacts, assumes 2 Dwelling Units
	Wastewater School Bill Impacts
	Wastewater Commercial I*
	Wastewater Commercial III*�
	Conclusion and Next Steps
	Slide Number 42

	Ordinance 95 - Staff Report (1)
	Final Ordinance 95 first draft District Rates and Regulations (JSS v-3)CJ 6-25-21 initiated draft (1) (1)



